Charleston »exceiience is our standarc CCSD BOARD OF TRUSTEES VISION 2(516

t : AGENDA
(CountySCHOOL DISTRICT March 23, 2015

75 Calhoun St., Charleston, SC 29401

Academics

1.1: Legal Update Information/
The Board will receive a legal update. Action

1.2: Non-Renewal of Continuing Contract Teachers — Mr. John Emerson Action
The Board will discuss non-renewal of continuing contract teachers.

1.3: Annual Contract Issuance for Teachers — Mr. Bill Briggman Action
The Board will discuss annual contract issuance for teachers.

1.4: Personnel Matter Update

The Board will receive an uidaz‘e on a Personnel Matter.

I1. CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION/MOMENT OF SILENCE, & PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE
1. ADOPTION OF AGENDA- Action

V. SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS (15 minutes) — Mrs. Erica Taylor, Executive Director of Recognitions
Strategy & Communications

A. Facility Masters Award
B. Wando Teacher Cadets
C. Women’s Research Project

V. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT — Mr. Michael Bobby, Acting Superintendent of Schools
VI. VISITORS, PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS
VII. APPROVAL OF MINUTES/EXECUTIVE SESSION AGENDA ITEMS Action
7.1: Open Session Minutes of March 9, 2015 Action
The Board will vote on the open session minutes of March 9, 2015.
7.2: Executive Session Action Items of March 23, 2015 Action
The Board will vote on executive session action items of March 23, 2015.
7.3: Financial Minutes of the March 9, 2015 Action
The Board will vote on the financial minutes of March 9, 2015.
VIII. CAE UPDATE
8.1: A. Personalized Learning - Dr. Kristen Brittingham Presentation
B. Academic Updates — Dr. Lisa Herring Presentation
1X. MANAGEMENT REPORT(S)
X. COMMITTEE REPORT(S)
10.1: Audit & Finance Committee — Mr. Todd Garrett
A. Audit & Finance Committee Update Information
The Committee will provide information and receive input from Board members on the
following:
-Items that are currently before the committee that have not been brought forward to
the Board;

-Future topics the committee plans to bring forward; and
-What is needed to move the item forward?

B. Student Transportation Request for Proposal Action
The Board will vote on a recommendation to approve the Request for Proposal for
Transportation.




10.2:

Policy & Personnel Committee — Mr. Tripp Wiles

A. Policy Committee Update

The Committee will provide information and receive input from Board members on the
following:

-Items that are currently before the committee that have not been brought forward to
the Board;

-Future topics the committee plans to bring forward; and

-What is needed to move the item forward?

Information

B. First Reading - JIH — Student Interrogations and Arrest — Mr. John
Emerson

The Board will vote on the first reading of Policy JIH.

Action

10.3:

Strategic Education Committee — Rev. Chris Collins

A. Strategic Education Committee Update

The Committee will provide information and receive input from Board members on the
following:

-Items that are currently before the committee that have not been brought forward to
the Board;

-Future topics the committee plans to bring forward; and

-What is needed to move the item forward?

Information

XI.

POTENTIAL CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

XI1.

NEW BUSINESS




TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Michael Bobby

DATE: February 9, 2015

SUBIECT: Request for Proposal No. P1519 Student Transportation Services

RECOMMENDATION: It is hereby recommendad that the Charlesion County School Board of Trustees
approve the award of a five (5} vear contract in the amount of $67,147,202(base amount) to Durham
School Services. This award is in response to Request for Proposal P15iS Student Transportation
Services,

The material is subrmitted for: Xl Action L] information

Xl Open [] Executive

Respectfully submitted:

Mr. Michael Bobby ,
Acting Superintendent of Schools /% @ /,%,
Dr. Lisa Herring L
Deputy Superintendent for Academics

Mr. Jeff Borowy

Deputy for Capital Programs N/A
Mr. Wayne Wilcher, CPPO, CPPB ’
Director, Contracts and Procurement

{_."\)(fu_ AV~ s 0 (‘_/\CL,"_, N
T

Committee Recommendation(s):

Andit and Finance Committee recommendation:

Mr. Todd Garrett, Chair Mf W
Audit & Finance Cornmittee {*-

0B



Contracts & Procurement
February 9, 2015

SUBJECT:
Request for Proposal No. P1519 Student Transportation Services

BACKGROUND:

On March 10, 2014 the CCSD Board of Trustees approved a (1) one year contract
extension to Durham School Services for Student Transportation. The extension term
of Durham’s contract expires June 30, 2015. On April 28, 2014 the CCSD Board of
Trustees approved a recommendation to form an Ad-Hoc Committee to investigate
concerns with Student Transportation services provided by Durham School Services.
The Ad-Hoc Committee consisted of three (3) CCSD Board of Trustees members and
two (2) people from CCSD Staff. The Ad-Hoc Committee met with Durham School
Services, CCSD Parents, Bus Drivers, and Community Leaders. On July 28, 2014 the
Ad-Hoc Committee provided a report to the CCSD Board of Trustees recommending
CCSD and Durham School Services add proper staffing, address safety concerns,
address overage bus fleet, and improve the overall management of transportation
services.

In May of 2014 the CCSD requested the Council of Great City Schools (CGCS) to
provide a high-level management review of CCSD transportation services. Specifically,
the CGCS review included the following:

e Reviewed and evaluated the structural components of CCSD transportation
services, which included the SC State owned fleet of buses, the contractor
owned and operated fleet of buses, and CCSD’s fleet of activity buses.

e Reviewed and commented on CCSD’s contract for transportation services and its
pending Request for Proposal (RFP) for future services.

¢« Reviewed and evaluated the management, organization, and staffing of CCSD’s
Transportation Department.

¢« Developed recommendations that would help CCSD’s transportation operations
achieve greater operational efficiencies, effectiveness, and sustainability.

The CGCS Team conducted fieldwork for the project during a four (4) day site visit to
Charleston May 13-16, 2014, The Team conducted interviews with key CCSD Staff
members, key Durham employees, examined documents and data, and conducted field
visits to various sites throughout CCSD.

The CGCS provided a report that recommended that CCSD consider the following to
improve and address issues concerning CCSD Transportation Services:

e In the absence of a significant improvement in the age and condition of the
State-owned bus fleet, continue to pursue strategies that would result in a CCSD
controlled, contractor-owned and operated school bus fleet.

e Engage an experienced transportation expert to assist in the development of an
RFP, evaluation of proposals and negotiation of the final contract.

e Contract for a comprehensive approach to route planning and scheduling, which
maximizes the use of technology and best practice methodologies and improves
the quality and timeliness of routes, reporting directly to CCSD's Transportation
Director,



Contracts & Procurament
February 9, 2015

« Augment the CCSD Transportation Department with the following staffing
resources: Quality Assurance, Data Base Project Manager, and contract for
Routing and Scheduling Services.

+ Augment the CCSD Contracts and Preocurement Department with a Contract
Administrator for Transportation Services,

« Ensure that individuals placed in positions have the appropriate skilis, expertise,
experience and on-going training to be successful.

e Develop a formal and comprehensive strategic business plan for the
Transportation Department.

= Establish a documentation and communication system to ensure all complaints
are addressed and all inquiries are responded to on a timely basis.

¢ Divest CCSD’s risks and liabilities associated with the operation and maintenance
of activity buses at school sites and contract these services under the master
transportation contract.

¢ Decentralize the Azalea bus lot to be more efficient. Smaller satellite lots closer
to the areas that they serve.

¢ Include representatives of the Transportation in special education IEP
conferences.

e Subscribe to an Oil Price Information Services (OPIS) to assist in the evaluation
of contractual gas price fluctuation pass through.

¢ Enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of the dispatch operation by centralizing
this function.

In September of 2014 CCSD contracted with School Bus Consultants (SBC), a national
school transportation firm to aide in the process. SBC was engaged to work with CCSD
Staff to assist with document development and process facilitation for RFP No. P1519.
Attached is a Memorandum from SBC that provides a summary of the procurement
objectives of RFP No. P1519.

The Request for Proposal was advertised in South Carolina Business Opportunity
(SCBO) and posted on the CCSD website. Additionally CCSD contacted service
providers listed with the National Association for Pupil Transportation. On December 5,
2014 a Request for Proposal was sent directly to five companies. The companies that
expressed interest included First Student, Inc, Durham School Services (incumbent
contractor), Student Transportation of America, Illinois Central and Cook Illinois.

A mandatory pre-proposal conference was held at the Bridge View Operation Center on
December 16, 2014. Three firms attended this meeting; Durham School Services, First
Student and Student Transportation of America. Based on discussion and subsequent
requests for information and clarification, the District issued three (3) amendments to
the solicitation.

Proposals were due on January 16, 2015 at 12:00 P.M. All three firms in attendance at
the pre-proposal submitted. The Procurement Officer evaluated the proposals for
responsibility and responsiveness and deemed all three acceptable. A committee was
formed to evaluate each of the proposals submitted. Committee members included:

Dr. James Winbush, Associate Superintendent, Leona Pounder, Principal, Whiteside
Elementary School, David Ruff, CCSD Teacher Assessment, Walter Campbell, Executive



Contracts & Procurament
February 9, 2015

Director, Food Services and Curtis Norman, Director of Student Transportation. Also
present as non-voting members were: Lawrence Lutrario, Procurement Officer
(Facilitator), Tom Platt, School Bus Consultants (Consultant), Janna Seifert, Office of
Teacher Effectivenass (Observer) and Stephen Thomas, Office of Teacher Effectiveness
{Observer).

DISCUSSION:

The evaluation committee was responsible for evaluating the written proposals
submitted by the firms. An initial meeting was held on January 28, 2015 to discuss and
rank the firms. The committee also scheduled presentations and interviews with the
three firms.

Presentations were held at the Bridge View Operation Center on February 4, 2015.
Each firm was granted thirty (30) minutes for their presentation followed by a fifteen
(15) minute question and answer period.

Following many hours of review and discussion, the committee ranked the firms based
on the criteria include in the RFP. Each of the areas had multiple subsets of
responsibility that required submission. Durham School Services was unanimously
ranked highest by the Committee.

It is worth noting that the final ranking criterion, which was cost for services, was not
revealed to the evaluation committee. The commiitee based their ranking and
recommendation for award on the presentations given and the written proposals. The
fact that Durham School Services also offered a lower cost proposal was an added
benefit to the firm selected by the committee to have the strongest operational
proposal.

Attached you will find a spreadsheet indicating the ranking for each firm. Also you will
find a spreadsheet demonstrating the cost submitted by each firm. Please note that
there were three options of service. Option one; Status Quo, combination of vendor
and State buses. Option two; vendor provided fleet. Option three; District owned fleet,
Durham and First student submitted on all three options, Student Transportation of
America submitting on only option three. Reasons Durham School Services was rated
the highest ranked firm:

¢ Convincing presentation that demonstrated a corporate commitment to continue

to improve service to the Students of Charleston County School District.

e 39 dedicated positions compared to 29 for next highest ranked firm.

s Addition of two new positions; Compliance Coordinator and dedicated Driver
Recruiter.
Call center to be maintained.
GPS tracking to be installed on all buses including State owned buses.
Trip Tracker software included in base cost.
Versatrans routing software to ensure routes are effective, Zonar for
maintenance tracking and safety.
e Committed to investing a minimum of $1.6 million for new buses and additional

technology.



Contracts & Procuremsnt
February 9, 2015

« Proposed 14 propane school buses per year to achieve a 60 to 40 percent ratio of
propane to diesel by the end of the initial contract if the District decide explore
this green initiative.

Collective bargaining agreement in effect until 2017.
Will commit 5 % of contract for minority vendor participation or will invest 5%
into minority business community in the Charleston region.

It was the objective to prepare a RFP that would result in proposals that address
recommendations from the AD-Hoc Committee, recommendations suggested by the
CGCS, and supports CCSD strategies to have a CCSD controlled and operated school
bus fleet. The companies were limited in their ability to address the issues with the
SC-DOE buses. The following is a breakdown of each proposer response to the
recommendations from the various committees:

Recommendations: Durham First Student Student
Transportation
Irnprove Safety and Conditions of Add Q.A. position to | New Buses New Buses
buses. staff. No buses over
_ the age of 7 years.
Maintenance and Repairs (Contractor | Increasing the number | New Buses New Buses
buses) of contractor owned
buses.
Maintenance and Repairs (SCDOE Contractor owned fleet | Contractor Contractor owned
buses) owned fleet fleet
Establish & documentation and Proposed to work with | Proposed a Proposed a
communication system to address CCSD to deveiop..not | Visual maintenance
complaints. included in proposal. Management council...no details
' tool...not well on the council,
explained.

Staff will continue to pursue strategies to develop a new transportation model to
achieve greater operational efficiencies, effectiveness, and sustainability. CCSD staff
will include in Durham School Services contract a requirement to commit 5 % of the
contract amount to minority vendors, which Is estimated to be $3,357,360 over the life
of the contract.

RECOMMENDATION: It is hereby recommended that the Charleston County School
Board of Trustees approve the award of a five (5) year contract in the amount of
$67,147,202(base amount) to Durham School Services. This award is in response to
Request for Proposal P1519 Student Transportation Services.

FUNDING SOURCE/COST: General Operation Fund

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT: $13,404,150 (Year 2), $13,419,736 (Year 3), $13,755,229
(Year 4), and $14,099,109 (Year 5)

DATA SOURCES:
Wayne Wilcher, Director, Contracts and Procurement

Lawrence Lutrario, Procurement Officer



Contracts & Procurement
February 9, 2015

Curtis Norman, Director of Student Transportation
Tom Platt, Consultant, School Bus Consultants

PREPARED BY:

Wayne Wilcher, Director, Contracts and Procurement
Lawrence Lutrario, Procurement Officer

Curtis Norman, Director of Student Transportation

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES:
N/A

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES:
Wayne Wilcher, Director Contracts and Procurement

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Memorandum dated February 25, 2015 (Process & Results Summary)
2. Memorandum dated February 25, 2015 (State Fleet Replacement Analysis)
3. Technical Proposal Evaluation Matrix
4. Ranking of Firms
5. Cost Comparison Sheet



MEMORANDUM

Date: February 25, 2015

From: Tom Platf, Vics President, School Bus Consulianis, LLC

To: Michael Bobby, Acting Superintendent, Charleston County School District

Re: Process & Resulis Summary - RFP 1519 (Student Transportation Services)

School Bus Consultants, LLC (SBC) was engaged by the Charleston County School Disirict (CCSD) fo work with
staff and to assist with docurnent development and process facllitation for the subject solicitation. SBC did not
actively participate in the selection process, but rather setved as a subject matter expert and advisor {o the Director
of Transportation, the Procurement Official and the members of the RFP review committee throughout the
procurement process. A recommended vendor has been selecied by the review commitiee. This memorandum
documents the procsss as followed and the results achieved up to this point, together with additional explanatory
detail and relevant information.

Summary of Procurement Objectives

The delivery of fransportation services within the CCSD is currently structured in accordance with State mandates
and operated via a long-standing contractual arrangement with private sector providers. Limited district staffing has
resulted in substantially all related functions being subsumed by contractor staff. The limited capacity of in-house
staif to properly plan, oversee, and ensure contractor accountability coupled with the progressively worsening
situation with the aging of the state-owned bus fleet were the primary considerations in structuring the current
solicitation for services.

In consultation with staff, SBC constructed a revised solicitation document that incorporated the following key
characteristics:

e A consolidation of service specifications info an outcome-oriented, performance-based set of requirements;
o A separation of the solicitation process documentation (the RFP itself) from the service specifications;

e The inclusion of the service specifications in a contract template to maximize clarity and minimize post-
solicitation negotiation requirements;

o Incorporation of a robust contract compliance and performance management requirement for district and
contractor staff in the contract specifications; and

@ Incorporation of future flexibility o increase the number of contracior-owned and/ or district-owned fleat
buses depending on the outcome of ongoing discussions regarding the current state-provided flest
structure.

It was a stated objective to build the solicitation and resulting contract to be mindful of the district's actual contract
oversight responsibilities, and in anticipation of future additions to staffing to support this responsibility. It was also
intentional that the accountability requirements for the successful contractor would be increased through additional
reporting, data analysis, and auditing functions. Finally, in acknowledgement of a changing setvice-delivery
landscape in the State, it was also a primary objective of the solicitation to obtain a range of pricing and service
offerings such that the district has the flexibility to migrate service delivery to a new model over the term of any
contract that would result from this solicitation.

Fags |1 Seftol Rus
Congultants



MEMORANDUM

Process Summary

The solicitation process proceeded on an early and aggressive fimeline such that a vendor selection could be
finalized early enough fo ensure a smooth fransition to the new coniract requirements and a smooth transition fo a
new contractor, should this be the result, There was also a desire to finalize the selection early enough such that the
district could malke a rational, business-case decision on whether and/ or how io begin shiffing the service-delivery
mode. The incorporation of additional district staff, an increase to the confractor-owned bus fleet, and whether fo
consider the incorporation of district-owned buses are all subjects that were anticipated for consideration at this point
in the process.

The following completed tasks and timeline bring the process (o this point:
1. October, 2014 — SBC begins work
2. December, 2014 - RFP released; pre-proposal conference held with prospective vendors
3, January 16, 2015 - Proposals received from three prospective vendors:
o Durham School Services (incumbent vendor)
e First Student
e Student Transportation of America
4, January 28, 2015 — SBC-facilitated mesting of the review commitiee
5, February 4, 2015 - On-site presentations and interviews of all prospective vendors
6. February 14, 2015 - Intent to Award nofification posted

The review commities was selected and appointed by the Director of Transportation and the Procurement Official.
Each member was provided with copes of the technical proposals from each prospective vendor. Cost proposals
were not provided fo the review commiitee. Each member was asked to review and rate each proposal against the
criteria identified for evaluation in the RFP. An evaluation matrix developed by SBC was provided fo help facilitate
this process. During the review committee meeting all three technical proposals were discussed and ranked by the
committee, and additional questions or concerms identified. Each vendor then presented their proposals in person,
and members of the committee plus additional district observers were afforded the opportunity to address questions
or concems. Finally, additional clarifying information was requested from one vendor, the cost proposals were
evaluated by the Procurement Official, and final rankings were determined.

The review committes, Director of Transporiation, and Procurement Official ranked Durham School Services as the
preferred vendor, and an Intent to Award nofification was posted. SBC was not a voting member of the review
committee. SBC did provide an assessment of each technical proposal, but only after the review committee had
completed its work. These are included as an attachment to this memorandum.

Results Summary
All three proposals were determined fo be in compliance with the procurement requirements and were considered for

award. The technical proposals were fo address the service specifications included in the cantract template, with
particular emphasis placed on the following evaluation elernenis:

o  Safety
o References and financiel stability
o Reliability
Fags |2 =g

Scliaol Bus
(onzuliants



MEMORANDUM

Responsiveness

Efficiency

Cost

Proposal quality, completeness, and compliance with RFP requirements

Each technical proposal and vendor demonstrated particuler strengths and weaknesses, No one vendor was rated
perfecily on any particular evaluation element, but through the review of written proposals and interview process the
committee identified Durham School Services as the clear leader relative to the evaluation requirements, the needs
of the disfrict, and the procurement objectives.

-Cost (pricing) was requested for three distinct options, as follows:

1. Status Quo - A reflection of the current state of affairs with a mix of State-provided and contractor-provided
buses.

2. Contractor-Provided Fleet ~ A scenario whereby the cantractor would provide the entire bus fleet.
3. District-Provided Fleet — A scenario whereby the district would provide the entire bus fleet,

There was a distinct rationale to this structure. First, it was absolutely necessary to gamer pricing that would be
directly comparable to the steady state such that comparisons could be drawn with current costs, and such that
operations could continue uninterrupted as the district enters the new school year. Second, in recognition of the
procurement objectives, it was necessary to bracket the range of possibilities for the future potential evolution of the
service delivery model.

It was recognized that any decision to proceed in a new direction, that is to say away from the current model of a
state-provided bus fleet, would be evolutionary. To enable this transition under a contract to be established now
would require an understanding of costs under a fully-implemented revised model such that a negotiated transition
would have this as a backstop for the definition of future rates. Hence the two alternative options were included in the
RFP. In all cases, the RFP also required that the vendor provide a proposed approach to incorporating, and price for
the inclusion of alternative fuel bus variants.

One vendor, Student Transportation of America, chose to provide a proposal only for the third option. Both Durham
School Services and First Student provide comprehensive cost proposals for all three options. The base daily rates
for a single regular route bus are summarized in the table below. While there was some additional variability imposed
by supplementary cost elements such as bus monitors, hourly supplemental services, and extra trips, Durham School
Services was the clear cost leader when all of these rates were aggregated fo reflect the total package of services to
be delivered.

Option 1- Option 2 -

. Option 1- Option 3 -

Base Daily Rate per Route Bus Contractor Stote Bus Contractor District Bus
Bus Bus

Durham School Services $ 276.05|$ 18175|S5 30060|$ 181.75
First Student $ 302.49 | S 190.82 | S 336.37 | $ 269.03
Student Transportation of America S - |s - | - |S  265.00
First Student Difference - 10% 5% 12% 48%
Student Transporiation of America Difference N/A N/A N/A 46%

|2 SchnolBus

(onsultants



MEMORANDUM

Summary Analysis of Options
The pricing differentials between the options are reflective of the variability associaled with capitel asset costs for

vendors in each scenario. This is further explained as follows:

Opiion 1 - For the two vendors proposing on this opiion, the primary difference in costis best described by
comparing the pricing for the daily operation of a state-owned bus. In this varian, there are no associated
capital cosis for the buses themselves, or for the associated operating costs to maintain, repair, or fuel
these buses as these are the services currently provided by the State. Thus, the costs proposed are
reflective of only the vendors' operating costs for staffing of these buses, associated facility and technology
costs, management and supervisory staffing, and their embedded profit.

in comparison, all of the bus-related costs carried by the State are included as coniractor borne costs in the
Option 1, contractor-provided bus rates. Here we see a larger differential between the vendors, and also can
glean the frue cost to the vendors for providing these components of service. The larger variance between
the vendors is due to one primary factor; First Student proposed to bring in all new buses for this
requirement (87 buses) while Durham would continue to operate the older fleet currently in place, replacing
only 14 of the oldest buses in the first year of the new contract. This would result in a higher capital outlay
for First Student, which is passed through to the district in the form of a higher daily rate.

Qption 2 - The primary difference in Option 2 is that all buses would be owned, maintained, and fueled by
the contractor. In other words, for the purposes of comparison we assume no involvement or subsidy from
the State in this scenario. The proper comparison then is to each vendor's cost for Option 2 against their
proposed cost for Option 1 — contractor-provided bus. In Durham'’s case, for Option 2 they propose to bring
in all new buses on fop of the 87 currently in place. Their capital outlay would increase substantially, hence
the higher rate. In the case of First Student, they would also now be faced with the costs for up-front
acquisition of a significantly higher number of buses.

Option 3 — The primary difference between Option 2 and Option 3 is that we assume capital ownership of all
buses by the District in Option 3, but with the vendor continuing to provide maintenance, repair, and fuel.
Setting aside the Durham proposal and comparing just the First Student and, now, the Student
Transportation of America proposed rates we can glean the true impact of the cost of capital ownership
relative to the total cost of transportation services. Both rate proposals are highly comparable. If we
therefore compare the First Student Option 2 rate ($336.37) to the Option 3 rate ($269.03) we note a drop of
$67.34, or 20%. In the experience of SBC, this is roughly comparable to the capital component share of fotal
transportation costs in most operations.

As noted previously, pricing was requested for these fully-implemented altemnative service delivery models in order to
facilitate the type of comparison discussed herein. A far more viable and feasible approach to implementing one or
the other alternative would be to phase it in over the term of the new confract. This would have the following benefits:

(]

@

F o g €

= | 4

While the State fleet is very old on average, not all state-owned buses require immediate replacement;

It is unlikely that alterations to the current State funding model will be approved or implemented in the near
term, implying that any further transition to contractor or district ownership of buses would be unfunded by
the State;

SchoelBus
(omsultants



MEMORANDUM

Either Option 2 or Option 3 as proposed would result in an enfirely new fleet; this is ideal in the short term,
but less than ideal for sustainabilily as the entire fleet would age at once, and the district would be faced
with a block obsolescence problem in future years. It is far better operationally to have a mix of vehicle
ages, with a reasonable average and a routinized annual replacement program.

With these factors considered, SBC underiook a brief analysis of expected actual costs io the District were ft o
assume responsibility for capital costs over time. The baseline assumptions for this analysis were that the District
would acquire buses through a lease finencing mechanism, rather than direct capital outlay, and that State buses
would be replaced such that the contract-mandated average age of seven years could be achieved and maintained
assuming no further state-owned buses are added to the fleet. This analysis is included as an attachment to this
rmemorandum.

SehnolBus
(ensultants



MEMORANDUM

Date: February 25, 2015

From: Tom Platt, Vice President, School Bus Consuiltants, LLC

To: Michael Bobby, Acting Superintendent, Charleston Counly School District
Re: State Flest Replacement Analysis

The objective for this analysis was (o assist the District in determining, approximately, what the capital outlay
requirements would be for the District o assume ownership of the state-provided school bus fleet over time. The key
assumptions are as follows:

1. The transition to a district-owned fleet would occur gradually, only as the state-owned buses come due for
replacement;

2. The replacement criteria would align with the coniractual requirements placed on the vendor.
a. Average flest age not-to—exce_ed 7 years
b. Nofleet units to exceed 12 years or 200,000 miles of use

3. The Disirict will utilize some form of lease, or lease financing mechanism to limit and stabilize annual cash
outlays.

Of these, the most difficult assumption to comply with will prove fo be the average fleet age and use requirements.
That said, this would be a relatively short-term complication, as illustrated in the discussion that follows.

Analytical Results Summary

To begin, SBC calculated the raw fleet replacement requirements, both in terms of number of units o be acquired
and the associated fotal cash-based capital outlay to immediately bring the state-owned fleet into compliance with the
contractual fleet age and use parameters described above. For this analysis SBC assumed a replacement cost of
$100,000 per bus, and a 3% annual inflation rate for the cost of buses acquired in future years.

Figure 1 on the following page displays the results of this modeling.

Schiool Bus
(onsulteats



MEMORANDUM

Figure 1

DIRECT CAPITAL OUTLAYS & COUNT OF UNITS TO BE REPLACED - UNADJUSTED

52040 185

§15.0

Keplecement Expentityres (killions)

$5.0
30

2

13

"

2007
0L

]
<
~

019
2020
2021
202

0

ma
25

Fizcal year

The current condition of the state-owned fleet becomes immediately apparent. 195 units, or nearly 70% of the fleet is
currently due or already overdue for replacement based on the 12 year, 200,000 mile criteria. In the modeling
summarized in Figure 1, all of these units are assumed to be replaced in the first year of the plan. The total
associated capital outlay on a cash basis would be nearty $20 million.

Regardless of the type of financing mechanism ufilized, or the fiscal viability of this plan, replacing this meny units at
one time does not make sense operationally. In this scenario the District would create a situation whereby most of
the fleet is new, but also where most of the flest would age at the same fime. This would create refiability problems in
future years, and the District would be faced with a block obsolescence problem whereby the same large number of
units would come due for replacement at the same time again in future cycles.

To avoid these issues, and to create a more sustainable long-term fleet replacement cycle will require short-term
adjustments fo the 12 year, 200,000 mile criteria. By delaying the replacement of approximately 60 of the newest
state-owned units by two additional years, and 60 more by just one year, we are able fo create a scenario the results
of which are displayed in Figure 2 on the following page.

SchoolBus
Consuitants



MEMORANDUM

3%

Figure

DIRECT CAPITAL GUTLAYS 2 COUNT OF UNITS TO BE REPLACED - ADIUSTED

gina

Replacement Expendityres (Millions)

71 7

30

10

@
@
w

2000 E
N2z
0z3
2024

e
o
=3
~

016
2017
018
2019

FiscalVear

Figure 2 displays the first step in achieving a viable, feasible replacement plan for the state-owned fleet. In this plan
all state-owned buses would be cycled out of the CCSD fleet by 2025, with the majority (206) replaced over the next
three years. SBC does not present this as an achievable plan, however, as annual cash outlays of approximaiely $7
million on school bus purchases in each of the next three years is unlikely to be within the financial means of the
District.

Recognizing this, the final scenario developed by SBC overlays the expected actual outlays for principal and interest

payments in a lease-financing mechanism for the recommended number and value of units in this plan. The financing
scenario assumes amortization over a ten year term at an interest rate of 2.5% beginning at the start of the next fiscal
year, The same 3% assumption regarding inflation of cost for the buses themselves is retained, and a 5% salvage or

frade-in value at the end of 12 years is also assumed.

The results are illustrated in Figure 3 on the following page.

Sclsool Rus
Congtdtanis



MEMORANDUM

Figure 3
REPLACEMENT EXPENDITURES, COUNT OF LTS, WITH LEAST PAYMENTS

57.0

350

§50

540

Cosl (Ivillions)

$3.0

520

510

o

2015

7L =
E3
3 . 2 e o

10
: & "
. = 5 |

‘ . B B B

i - i L} -_

2022

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2023 2024 2025

Fiscal vear

7. REPLACEIMENT EXPEINDITURES == TOTAL PRWCIPAL & !INTEREST PAVIMENTS

The aggregate principal and interest payments would increase each year as more units are acquired and added to
the financing mechanism. However, the total annual outlay never exceeds $3.42 million, and this level is only
reached in the tenth year of the plan. Initially, the District would be able fo replace 206 units over the first three years
for {otal principal and interest payments of just $400,000 in the current year (assumes a mid-year acquisition of the
first buses), $1.21 million in the year two, and $2.01 million in year three.

SthoolBus
Consuliants



Charleston County Schoot District
Student Transportation Services (RFP P1513) Technical Evaluation

Yendor Summary
Evaluation Element Available Durham First Student
Points School Student Transportation

A. Executive Summary 0.0 - e -
B. Performance Safety 18.0 17.0 16.0 16.0
C. Response Compliance 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0
D. References 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0
E. Vehicles & Related 0.0 e e
Equipment
F. Financial Stability 18.0 18.0 180 18.0
G. Performance Reliability 14.0 13.0 130 120
H. Performance 14.0 13.0 13.0 13.0
Responsiveness :
I. Performance Efficiency 6.0 6.0 5.0 5.0
J. Proposal Cost 6.0 6.0 5.0 40

Total Points 100.0 97 94 9z




STUDENT TRANSPORTATION COST ANALYSIS-REVISED

Alternate 1
Status Quo

Alternate 2
Contractor Fleet
{336 Routes)

Alternate 3
District Owned
{336 Routes}

Durham

87 ROUTES
(Contractor
1)$276.05
2)$300.60
3)$181.75

$24,016.35

$101,001.60

$61,068.00

249 ROUTES
{SCDOE)
$181.75 (SCDOE}

$45,255.75

N/A

N/A

Durham Total

$68,272.10

$101,011.60

$61,068.00

First Student
87 ROUTES
(Contractor)
1)$316.91
2)5336.37
3)$269.03

$27,571.17

$113,020.32

$90,394.08

249 ROUTES
{SCDOE)
$200.30 (SCDOE)

$49,874.70

N/A

N/A

First Student Total

$77,445.87

$113,020.32

$90,394.08

Student Transport™
87 ROUTES
{Contractor)}

1)N/A

2IN/A

3)$265.00

N/A

N/A

$89,040.00

249 ROUTES
(SCDOE)
N/A (SCDOE)

N/A

N/A

N/A

Student Transpart
Total

N/A

N/A

$89,040.00

Bus Aide/Monitor

Durham

First Student

Student Transport

$130.00

$103.36

$12.77 per hour

*STUDENT TRANSPORT OF AMERICA ONLY SUBMITTED ON ALTERNATE 3 DISTRICT OWNED FLEET




| | ebe

“(ueljo able] Jo 2ouepine)
ojjAucsyoep Buies Ajuauny
“uojseprey) Jo A§0 3y ul pateso)

papnjoul
uoneuLeul jo siuod k3] ©

o

1 "M sesnq sebusssed #g)y], o

:siuswse]dey] j8salq - 193]
fesaiq (onD smexs) 3| uuoj Suroisd

#0110 ejelodion jseayInog o “pepiro.d eq i suopssod popinold
* Jinsme] [eejews Je)S GE -uoyeLLiojul JoLSIp Jed o =o__.mm__._
Aue o) Aued e am aue Jou *ABojouyos) feuonippe pue ‘JeBrawy
‘fuedwoa Jayour Aq pasnboe 0] K I 10 pue sasng meu Joj [l 9°L § " twoisinboe
Buteq Jo ypw Bubtaur J0u “afienbime] Honii 10 wnuguiw e Jsaaul o) Buiuiio)) o g >8.n_..=.v_:ma
aie e ‘sbupesooid Aoidnnjueq 'pig es_q sy} uo BUlLEsU0s
fue u) pebebus Ajuaung jou Z81°E/$ ‘puog pig Jo Js0o ebeseny o v vogeg
pue punos Ajeioueul aie ojp, “Jinsme [elielew e o) Aued ut pasnbay
‘papnjoul 1o ‘Auedwiod seyjoue ypm Buibiew uonew h._ES
uohewioui jo syutod A3y] NSXT ) ‘shuipessoid Aaydnpjueq u pahebue ’ a5
“pepinoid ‘popasu se Auesno Jou ‘sjgess Ajelouelld, o
SIOPUSA JBUJ0 U 10 YILe Jeym papasul qS00) ollioeds uogeuwojul ‘pebpamouoe od4d
o} JEjiuls UOI08s SI) Ul papnjou yum uonejussaid ,ejejd sefiog, sseak ony Jo pouad Joejuon o | OUY U PBGHISSP
10U 9JeMm SouEuR0s Huiand e se speal [esodoid sy AjjereueD) o :papnjoul SE §99IAI9S
"SJueprs 000'000' JoA0 JO “d4¥ sif) U peyoads uoneunayul jo sjuod Ay o sshksp!
uojjerlodsues; ay pue Auedutod se peziue6io Jou s) ssuodsal sy o “1o1j0 Aol Jeup anjen Laxs, sl pue oy woped
© se Ajiqe}s oy} sebpepmowjoy flejep ‘suopdo Buoud sy jo Bupue)siepun 0} payenb s
*4 8 Ag pamoads se yeulo) Jeyeaib ey ymm uonoss Lodal sy Jiay *Auedwo e se Apgers, dopuen ey Jety
o) mojjo} o} sieadde fesodord e 0 Bujiejel Bale yaea yym (esodosd 18U} Jo 4S99 eyy Huunsse uo WD
sscuodeal 1oy 1o JuBuiuns B papinald o pesnoo} eale sl 10} asuodsai oY) o ”w__wwmﬂ%h P o—

31 Jo uoissadu [elsng :asuodsal 8y Jo uoissasdul [jeIsAD :asuodsai su) jo uoissaidwy flesea() | 1o syuiod Asy ay annaaNg 'y

rx_ amsuy wewa(3

yuey | eouswy jo uonepodsuel] wepms | uey wapms 15414 01 suopsany uopenen3

SSOIAIBS |00LRS weying

eIaLeUNYy O uoneModsuel ] JBpMS o

wepmsisily o
SBIAIDS [00YIS Weyng o

isaue)) Jopuep

Xiipeyy uonenjead jesodoid [eanuyosy
s80IAIBS uonevodsuel | uepms - sjesodoid 1o 1senbay
1LIsiq j00yds Kuno) uoisapiey)




7 | obey

jon; auedoud pue [essip [
apinoid pue sseyoind | YIS e
‘wieiboid uawidojonep
pue Bujuses] paseq qej o
‘sBupesw Ajajes Ajyjuow ped o
*Bujules] pEOI-UO PUE LUODISSEID
JO SINOY GE SAIS0D! SIGAUP MO e
‘gouepusye
pue BuiAup sfes 10} spreme
Guipnjoul ,uejd uopusiel UsAOId, ©
‘pelenolisu
3 [l SSNE AMUS-0U Y/ @
T oL 23 L
‘sjyeusq
anpeduiod pue ssealoul
obiem 2 oA1@92l [[IM SISALIQ ©
VLS yum
jususfojdwe Jo} UcEISPISUCD
fwopd usnib pue pamalntaiul
aq [ seafojdwe uoneyiodsue)
pUE SISALP JUSLIND Iy o

‘i) uonensiupupy safojdus

013810 =) Incybnoiy
pejeao) AjfeoiBejens senjioe)
oM} aseyoind 10 esee) M LS
'sjuaied o1 Aposup
SLISJE Slel) pue SUOLEIBEOoU Shiq
awp-eai sepinold , dojSajES ©
‘sifeq
12es dej pue 'swisisAs @s)e)
“j99yD IO ‘suue Buissoso
fyeles ‘wejshs 4o suopnjos
wu BINOUAS ‘suseisAs aoue|jieains
BloWEd-p @Xel | [ebuy
‘solped Aem-om) ‘Bujuofipuod
Jle spnjoul [ SIYSA 8L ©
"Alunon) auy) U sjooyos seawd

Z| 1o ebe xew ‘sieak / jo sbesone
ue psagxe jou [im :ebe 98]

*0S Hojneeg

u1 sen|| JeBeuew [eleush eary

‘suswubisse duy

pue uopdejes eynod Jo sesadind auy)
Jo} Auojues ueung Jo uofiubogal
pue ‘uopnguiucd 1ahojdw] %05

12 uejd [edlpel Jeuag paxid ‘snuoq
fyjes 141009 € “noy Jad gO'E1$

0} 00z 1§ Wwouy abem Bugreys sy
9SB0IoU| ‘JOALP 0} asealoul oy Jod
G704 B SpNjoul Paiayjo SaANUSoL|
"GLOZ/1L0/20 40 Sjep Le)s Joeluoy

e (T alT}

340 IR

(il ; _?;_;
*Aep 1ad sinoy

5'9 Jo abeIone ue uo paseq sl 44y
'sejnol

[o0Y9s Jewns GG pue ‘ssesjel dle)
0¢ pue Aep-piLu |G ‘sapnol Wy
e 1o Aep Jad "siy y6°6 o abesene
Ue uo peseq Buopid Joenuoyy
'sjejep jeuonesodo

UORBULIOjU [eIouBLl o} papiaoid
ale saysqem Auedwiod o} syur

" Jinsme| [eusjew

e 0 Aued e Jo ‘Auedwon Jeioue
Y BuiBlew *pasinboe Buieq
‘sBuipagoosd Loydnpjueq U pebebus
Apualing ese ssjuedutoo ojd
dnoigy)siiy ey} jo suou ‘obpapmoun)
N0 301884 o) 01, 1By} SIIeIS

..m=o_u_mon_ pejeaIpep /7.

popnjout
yeis feuonippe/adoral du) 3 Sd9 e
safijioe)
soueusjurew apiaold o) 4g00 o
papinosd soueusjuR [y ©
anel aseds juansed ue) e
$98Nq [je sepirosd weying e

:1338]] [9SaIp PaUMO J0}IRNUCD
e ap1aosd = [) unog Budug

‘pepnoul

4els [euoyippe/iedoel] dil B SdO o
"PepN|oXa S1 SINJINASEIUL

Buijeny pue jeny suedoid 01509 o
“J0BAjU0D
[eniul 8y} Jo pue ey} Aq [esalp 0]
suedoud jo oneljusosed gy 0} gg &

aAloe o) Jead Jod sesng mau gyl

yym |, 3 sasng Jebusssed zy|, ©

‘usweoejda suedosd ypim [esaiq
wiaung (L# 3y) 11 uuog Bupnd

puapny coo- fjereledes
peyjiq Ajsnoaaid a1aM Jeu) Seoles
lejuswsddns pue ‘sasesiou; sbem
Jonup ,seynal uaydo 221049 |00Yos,
10 UOKEUIWIS O} 8NP 8SERIIU] 83l ©
poulgjulew aq 0] Jsjus) j|eg o
ofjditasap uoisod sy
Jeyniosl IsAUp pajesipap
pue Joyeulpioos) soueljdwon
— suohisod mau omy Buippy
‘piq =seq
uf papnjoul axeAos Jexoesn dir) e
q 0} 59 ©

a} ®9lAles pue sdi) pley jooyas ‘pebpajmounoe ofiesone pue wnwpew palisep
[rejuswieje Buipinold Apusing sizaf el Jo poued 19E1UCD analyoe o} Ajerendosdde soejday o
Jemsuy TS
juey | eapRwiy jo Llopeuodsuel) wepms JU3pms 1si4 ey SIUIIS [00LDS WRLING 0) suonsenp uonenea3




¢ | ebed

"wesAs uopeyodsiiel ;
aS30 8y Joj pepasu

*S9{9ILBA [|E 40} SUBLSJUEW pue

[ony 1o 1809 s sapnjoul Buiol “100e)
aleds 9,01  Y)m JoB1)U0D B JO
uonesado auy 1oy peiinbai ssjaiyen jje
sopiroad (4S99 1ey) sswinsse Buioig
:189]4 papiA0id-1UISI(] - § OLRUBIS

*5|seq 9589-)$3) E U0 SOjoIyaA
patemod-auedo.d Jo esn sy Bunojid
ssnosip o} sasodold Juapng isild e
‘sajoiyen suedod G/ Jo wnwiu
e oz o} JoLASIP 8y} aAnbe) pinam
Juapnis 18114 ‘sajoiyen auedoid
ajesedo o) pauinbas simonnseul
DUE }S09 [BUOhIpPE dYJ 0} 3N

‘[eny suedoig

‘Jousip syp jo

1senbel sy 18 ss|oiyen pejeni-eurdoid
10} papirosd s1 Buioud ‘uonippe

U] "S3IYA [|e 1o} SoUBUBJuIEW

pue [sn} §0 }s09 8y} Jo} e|qisuodsal

aq |jim Juepnjs 18- “Iojoe) aseds

%01 € UIIM S3Jn0J ¢ oy sjesedo

0) S9sNq Jfing SELWOL | Mau puelq

82 opinoid [jm Juspnis Jsii :198]4
popinoid-1c}oBRUoD) - 7 OLIBUSIS

. '304908

Jo 1509 Aq papinoxd aq | sesnqg
SL J0 JspulewIal oy | "sasnq sjnes
UMO INo uo Jojoe) sseds %), e pjoy
pue 0S990 4o} sesng aleds pajesipeg
01 @pinoid ‘seinol Wa/INY 28 ou)
ajesado 0] 5esnq Jing SEwIoy | mau

pueiq 90}, spirod jiw (Sd) Juepmig
18114 0N Shiels = |. DLIeUdIg

sl
000'00g J0 wnwiew 2 yjim ‘sizoh

jeey)

o} o} pieBes yym S[qR@Y a18 S, ©
*swesBord Bujuies

{s09 u sledioiped o) oNURUOD IR o

Pesu SIESA SN0, §0 U0y

* s1eek 1ayno, s )
U seseaiou) Jusdsed 67 Jo wnuiup| o

i 9% )

ilpeasa-ap JUoK S jand -~
“Buond S1d0 10} vojieB sed 6)'z§
Uuo paseq ale suofdwnsse [an4 o
'§]S00 S,10j3B1U07)
au) Joedw) jey) suole|nBbai isyyo
10 [e90] ‘9jels ‘fesops). ur sabueyo jo
Juane auy u uoneobisusl yie) poos) o

i Arg
|

& LISUM ~
‘abesane Jusino
oy spesaxs abiesene Ajiep aip leu
Juens auy) U Aep sad awy pasesiou
3} 108]j0) 0} SjE. JJRIISIWWOD
e sjenobau o} Jybu sy} senesal
weying - 44y oy u Aep ted sinoy
G0 ayj ey ssej si Yoiym sbesene

JuaMNd By} ue peseq ajel Ajleq o
‘leuondo

sjuased to) dde Bupjoen sng o

"pepnjout Busoud [euondo I4-WOY ©

:suondwnssy
i

w0 Buidld Ul se suoisnjoul seg o
soueuuEw

pue sesng (ie sapinoid 4509 ©

:sasnq e
apinoad oy 121s1Q - []) w0~ Buisug

yuRy

E213UIY J0 uoRELdsUR)| WRpNIS

ey

WIPMS 15114

SSIWIBS J00UIS WeYINg

0) suonsenp

wawa|3
uonEnjeAs




7| obed

Bl JORIEISO [B0)] X g
“usiwdinbe paumo-30doS
aup Jo Aue Joy any jo Buisusdsip

oy} Jo ab=10)s [ony ‘o Jo uoisiroid
aup. Jo} Ayjiqisuodsal aAB J0U [
S "sesnq pauma-(gsJ0 Sy 1o} jen}
10} Ayiqisuodsal aAeY osie [ S
‘J09]4 papinoid-jousiq - ¢ OLIBUSOS
‘Juswidinbe paumo-1019L0od |[&

1o} Buisuadsip pue abelo)s jony ‘jony
10 aseyoind o) Jol Agisuodsal
o) Seyj S SOUBeUeas [j& U] o

‘Jen

*(uion0ag soueUBIUIR) 199]4
uj uofRULIoIL) Pejieeq) | B8l
1809 pue aARdE04d Lj0og Uo SO0}

2 Uym weiboid e onsusyaiduon, «

:s[oILaA JO BIUBUBIUIE

‘asnefo

OXis-0u & L /|0 [Hun josye
ujuawesibe bujuiebled sajos|jo) o
‘papnjoul ued jeuogesedq o

“Jopuen Aou

€ 0} 3}Jom au} Jo Jueased g o) dn
piemE 0) S SY) Ui Y10M pIroj e

juey

eauewy Jo topeuodsue)] 1WapMS

Huey

OPIS 1S4

ey

S8qINIBS |00UIS Weyng

0) suopsany

weus|3
uopeneAs




G| ebey

‘s

{le e joAs] Apea. uogoadsul ue o}
paulEjulew a¢ 0} 812 sasng Jeu}
sl fojjod Auediuoa ay) jelp pue
SUONEPUBLILICIS) JaImaelnueu

ainjie} 1eyy Ajuep Ay jusdied 06 !
suopoadsu) sjels Joj ajel ssed feqiu] o

:suonsadsu] 21815

SR Sae)

SHjuo g,

oty 101 sagew P

573 a4
¥L 3074
WL 402

Jad paulejujew ale sasnq 1 papnjaL) B -
= @& GRELIEY 9 [4{u4
V1S, ey soje)s osuodsay e 186 | ¢l0z -
o 10U sonoedst) 126 | €102 €ne 1976560 47 ET0T
Pyl 1ou 53 e W
, 8°9 | 7102 i S % Rl
:suonoadsy sieis SO|IW [jiw |, suoisyjo)
WeYIng Uy} Jamoj pue BqEensld | Ad 48nfen pappy
v = _. -
S O} Jefuuis o sejiu uofjjw sed SN & U0 10 Punole selinful oy o SRt SRR ;sonenu
79 10 8121 Juepioae ejgepodal "afelene Alsnpul o) jo Jley fieres
d ° UBy) SS8| 8J2] UOISH|0D = #1-¢ L0 10 “psphput 10 uopduiassp
10a oy 03 pajlodal sy U} SS8| ) IS0 = 7|-¢ 10T 104 = uoneuLioyu Jo syutod Aoy o sienbepy
:a1el JUSPISIR S|gRIUBASIY ;5181 JUSPIIIL B|GRIUdADIY *9)ep 0) seAlenIu] —
: ul ‘papnjoul uoneuueu jo swiod As A eealfjeteKu o) oy taeq u o aa
._umﬂ_._»u > ‘pspnjaul uon 41 J0 s M oney Asf) Moy M3IASI O} [B104BUS(q M.wow_ Mc_
uepeusioil g Siaed Aml *asuadsal sdeysad pue funsaiejui oq pinom PIYSA
"dl=I¥ J0 Jusjul weyan au} ul ueyy pepiaosd 11 “I0pUSA JuBLIND AY) S| Weying L ueld uonebpi
2y} 03 juejduwiod oq o} sieaddy o S1 [lejep ss9| Jej ‘1anemoy ‘d4y Jo se '1anamoy ‘enisusyaIoiiod Uep1OoY
asuodsal Rl Sy 0} Jueldwiod aq 0} sieaddy o f1on sem ssuodses ay] e ajgeluenaly faes
au jo uoisseldu |[eloAd rasuodsal aul jo uolssaidu [jeiang :asuodsal ay Jo uolssaidu jjereng ;olel JUepIDOY | BouBLLIONSd H
‘ayeBaib6e uoyw
01,¢ /eoue1n290 Jad uolfjiul G§ ©
:@guensuy
T /
abieyo jeuonippe ou je
Bupjoe.y Jomeyeq Juepms s1OyIsi o
EJep Sd9 »
Buysodes ojuosoafe Jeuoy o
&mc.c:.._ua 1
"0JeMY0S suenesiap buisn
Bupnoa Joj sjgisuodsal oq |IM S< o
:Bunnoy
RMSUY wawal3
Juey | eausuiy jo uopepodsuel) Jepms | juey 1UIpMIS 1SM4 ey S33UMIS j00LIS Weyng 0] suonsanp uanenjeas




9| ebed

*9A0(E PAUIINO SEol. 8y}
Ul spiole SY1S 0 SSeUsAloR)e
8U} Jo uonenjene oy,
"W 1.§ 10 suopelado aydeibioab
{[e 0} UOWILIOD S2 paynuep!
seonoeld }seq Jo uonejusue|dul
puE uopeuwLess)q
‘suopefnBer uoyesyenb
JoAup yym aoueduwiod
01 398dsa1 yum seonaeid 1saq
10 1uswdof@Aep pue uoleoyuap|
“fieles
eoejdyjiom pue uopenodsuer
10 seale al) ul seanoed jsaq
10 JuswidojeAsp pue uoieIyRuSp|
‘suopeledo
SV.LS Jo spadse (e seyeauued
U2IUM JusiisAoduwi Snonupuod
o pauo} inyno Aajes paseq
-10IABYS] B JO SoUBUSILIEW
pue jusLysIigelse 8y e
‘papnjou
ssuodsel 8,1 S sjuswepe fay)
f 2 10N

L]

:uenebm WIPIIIY SjgeIusAdld

"auweu
5,01y U] pue ‘pasn sued
‘pausiopiad yiom 2y Suijelep
papinoid aq Jm spodal Auopy «
*suodas uoosdsu [jg
10 Adoo & papinoid eq 0) 4303

*siseq Jear Jed suo & jses)| 2 uo
sjuswssasse pue Buuies preoguo
apIA0sd SI0JONASUI PEOY- 8L |- UQ
‘sBupeaw
fyeyes Bunonpuoo pue ‘seapoeid
Rieles Bumpne ‘voisyuadns
peol-uo ‘Buiuiel) pue jusiissesse
JeAp jo seale o ul juswsfizuew
[B00] Jsisse siebeue Ajeles
‘suogoedsul
uoguanasd Anfui Buipnjou;
sjpne Ajeses tenbal sunioped
yiswebeueyy Ajees [euoibay
*9ouejsisse Juswiebeuew eisush
pue ‘spiepuess Yd3 ‘10d "'YHSO o
soueydwios pue ‘Buies pue Buimy
Buipnjoul sjeuig) |20 o) uoddns
sepraoud :poddng fAejes jeaua)
"pIeMYy @ousjjeaxs feuopednaap
‘Mipee; o1ez 1.0z Pue €102
"BIUSWY MO Ul
fieyes lo} preme Jseyfiy ay—fepatu
Ryejeg Joj sso19) UBAIL) §,JIBUNOY
fyeeg [euoleN Jo Jauum 6007
‘sanbiuyas)
Bugaup aAisUsieq WwesAS ylwg
“1ad
pileA pue ssdooid OUM SIAUP MaU
1o} Bujuies; Jeyseyal pled 1oy 2|
‘uoljerijens pIeogquo [enuuy o
"sBupesil Mses Ayuop o

{¥1S 10} G¢ pue weyng

10} 's1y o 0} pareduion) Hues
10 "8I ¢ [euomppe ue sepinald S o

‘Hons e i

°

‘uonebniyy WapIdoY sjgeIuanalg

‘gng JS}eL 3o paLng
1o Juswsoejdes oY) se yans panbal
fedsy Jouws e Jo jjnsal sy aq Aew

pue Buijoo) ‘Ajeles soejdyiom
pue fojen ‘Bujusaios joyos|e pue
Bnip ‘siebeuews ‘yejs soususiuRW
‘siaANp Sephjou] — SPIEpUElS [eqojs)
7}, = weibold wien InQ Buiaug,
*pasinbas
uawdinbz snloe)0ld [BUOSISY
FADBIOD @530 Ul DSprLy |
Bupjoer) yuepms
Y,
Seloused Jouajxe pue 1oLy}
suonoadsul 9[31yen siuonsly o
Sdo e
%j98y2-pliya JjuonIsjy
Bulussias eafeojdwiz o

AL A

‘apnjaul saaremul fsies

A Gy I 1
suojyediuod

JOR=) SR JO 1909 3Y) 3§ -
Ajoes pue 0epoy sng e
che I 1E20) pu
A B4y S80(]
pieogq malral flsjeg e
sobessew Aeles AleQ o
yjuow sod aouo Bugesw Ajgles e
*s1y g, 0} 9| sepiroid weying — 1K
Jod peinbas Bujures) Alsjes 1o 'siy gl o
SIOALP MaU |0 uopenjene Aep o o
{weiboly Jeleny) iy pg [euonippe
ue snjd *s1y ¢z Jo Buuies) ajelS o
Jpeuuopad Hueg Afuadr )
Ay — Sjuey S Y5l Ny

:uonebniyy 1sp12oy SjgeusARld

*71,0g Ul pejoadsu) sesig g6 Jo Jno

SUOIIE|OIA YYM g7 :suonadsul sng

*03 40} pepnjoul siels Alofes weyng e
‘abelore

Aueduwlos ueyy taybny ebetene S00 e

Auey

eoLIRUIY J0 UORELOdSURI] WRPMS

uey

WIPMS 1S4

SSOUIBS JO0LDS LUEBLIG

Jamsuy
T) suopsany

wewa3
uonenjens




/| ebed

1 SqIAUOSYoEr
Suprjout pels) SIouAsIp 07
S WSl

lesl
18N SAnEUIBYE 1I8Y] Ul YIMals) ©
ajed uopus)el Jueosed gg «

sieaf [e1onas
18] 8Y) Jonc Yol jusosed Gz o

SIOLSIP HS WOY seoualael O o
M 201 10 (edojoaus
ejesedsg) 1517 sl uoifey
iseeynosg - ('q) sjusjuog jo sjqey, »

21817 WaljD

seehojdwie gog‘/g

$951q 100428 000'6Y ©
SUORB90] +00S ©

{slousi OS Jeujo)
Ja)sayoso(] pue Alunog) Jomesy o
paisi] spsIp 1g ©
HE RG]
SN0 7S e
200g ©9uls I0j0Bue) 0S99 ©

Sepe)s 7€ o
SIOUISIP 00495 0G5

SepIeA 000'Z) © sjomsIp jooys 0ge‘| o soafojduse 00’ o GIsITIuSO
seafojdws 0po‘gl « eolSWY YMON Ul uofepodsues s3sn( |ooYds pos‘Le s
ssjels g1 Ul SIUISIP 00€ © JpunaiB, jo sspiroid Jsabier], e 0in) dnosg ssaudxa ~IOUMO JUeLINY
/66 Ul pepuno) SEM YLS 07d dnoug Jsiid/eatiowly [euoneny(sioul SfiAuBLENR) )
‘papnjoul dnosgysi loyedsigy o sseidxg [BuolE AQ PUMO o ‘sjusuisie
uonewsoju jo syod £sy] o :papnjou :pepnpuy | A2 Bumoljoy oy
4y o uoneulopu §o siutod ay] o uoneutioul jo Swied fay o | 10 BUIPUEISISPUN
0) @oueldwod vl eq o} sieaddy e RN e __m_ww__ﬂ_ M__um_w :o.ow
—— 8y} 6} eoueldwios ui aq o} sieaddy o oy} 03 souelduwiod uj eq o) sieeddy e ks -
2 Jo uoissaldull [jzIsAQ :asucdsal au jo uoissaldw fjle1aag :asuodsel auy o uoissaidu [jeseng JOpUSA 8} pICT asuodsay '3
. POI "SpReOY
Lon LUl
f PE JO HONUBIL O
WILIPG
B ISP JO Uofusul o] |
‘ "(teuoz) Sdo sney sesng |y o ostiodsel Jidg o
i "sojpel [elusiuuosaug o
flem omy yyim peddinbs sie sesng Iy e suoyenaens Aousbiewrg o
) 'sasnq |fe uo Jolyeam juswspu| o
Py pajjelsul ele suie jonuod Buissor) e Sjeaiy quiog o
-Buiseq uoguesid Joy) 0) Juslilep B pue pieog-uo SUMOpYEaJg [EIIUEIR]
18] S1 p|iLjo Ou Jey) 2insue 0) pIedejd susBouped suI0g-poojg o
pue ssouateme Buijing » MDYV © JO 85N Bl puie ‘Slewl ey G
, .:awm_EoM:_ fyoyes SIBIN-93YD PIIYD Jo uonefelsul 8y, o Buuueyd K1oAc081 Jojsesiq o
ajep-ol-dn Yy s JaAUp Sulpinold e .
iUl saaneniul Lales .
“Wiexe uolsenh (9 B pue diom “paquosap Bujuren jeuonippy
28IN0D '§(J7) UeASs Jo Bulisisuco "aemwLwoa Ajeses/ebueyp jo
uresbold diysiepest Aejes o uojiepljer fiejes pue ‘siipne Ajojes
‘asuodse) Juspioul ‘uonehnsaaul
:apnjoul ssaneniul fsjes uspiooe ‘abeiois wswdinbs
W IBmsuy uswely
juey EOLRWY Jo Yoeyodsuel) wepms | juey JuSpmg 1S ey SIS [COUDS WiEYIng 0} suonsanp uonenjeas




g | ebey

ﬂm_:m_v 3J

1A PN Se )]
S W0y} S8oUdIBlal O e

L BIBOA XX |5E] BY) 1N
SO| PUE UM SIIEAU0D (G ISGUINY |
Jpenies 1onsip sefiery
Tiuwagoy
) uo popinosd 100 uoEWIONY »

¢ 51E3A XX |SB| Su) 10A0
10| PUE UOM SIIRUUCD JO 1D -
‘pRlHUEp] 10U pansss nelp sebrey -
ool
Al uo papiacid jou voRULIoNY
siel uouages Juaaled g6 1wl

BaLeuy 40

uopepodsuel] Juapms

ey

juspms 1544

ey

SSDINIBS [00LPS Weying

01 SUORSAND




6| ebed

asl

UiRINO}

L | vhsee | XL o|bes
sasnq

[43 as [enued

JhGL | gLee | AN | Juodsels
s

0008 Ao

sIKog | ELiale | AN | wodsdeq

'$8SN( 10 Jaguinu pue ‘s)ep
a)e)s 1enuod ‘sjep ‘elels JousIp
Buipnioul @suaisial JO S18)j7
‘papjoul
uonewiou; jo syuied £ay] o

“JoAmoy gy au)
0} soueydusos uj aq o) sieaddy o

=T Siand Raa o
Jouuo4 auslL | v sued 4 | L1/80/Z) | SY seuey
So8nq sosng
78 M0 ool pioy
002 | #9219 | AN | lejseyooy 900Z | Shiai | Lo | - Bulem
sejnol sasng
19 | puvafe | AN | Ao oeyng Ll
s a 000z | ¥Wzz/L | Im | eupey
19 | vuzzizy | ON | pioyng Sesng
Senol
o 00 esoy
b Hwios 8002 | uSMy | 14| ees
100 | viezel | 14 [eAng . :$8SNq J0 JSQIINU
Sluspn)s pue *ajep Sje)s J0eucO ‘9)ep ‘Sjels
0059 aand ‘Jouisip Buipnjou sousJsjel Jo s1eneT] o
0002 | wlieeicl | V9 uojeq ‘papnjaul
:S95N( JO Joquinu uoneutioju; jo siuied £8y) o

pue ‘sjep Siels 10euod ‘ajep ‘sjels
‘Jolgsip Bujpnjoul souseyel J0 S1e)eT o
‘pepnjoul,
wonewiou jo syuiod £3y] o

‘Tjueyd
.‘w.:_ sam ..u:_K_ 3 Of _ X
*sg)ep JUsLIND

Uit g U 10 10 7 LPIM ] BY}
P 3oueyduon Ui a18 S9UBIRNRY ©

08 Wl pop

WD JaLn;
) SRUEY SEAR
PSS DS B o

D WO PapPRIOW SeouaIs|a)
ol
AT
AL ey Jof
M Dl AUM |

29 0

A jo
SOUUBBIB] A O @

J1oRamoy ‘da
oy} 0} soueyjdwod ul aq o) sieaddy o

el
19uuio] Wwod
ERIIEIEIEIEClg)

ZMUS3 JuBLIND

:asuodsas woJj seoueseyel
3L Jo uoISSadIW JJRIRAD :asuodsali sy jo uoissaidu [jeisag :asuodsal oy Jo uoissaidiul [jeIeAg EETIT SagualapRy “Q
|
w Jamsuy ey
Huey | eouauwy JO woneuodsuely epms | ey Juspms 15814 ey SSIAIRS (00YDS weying 0} suopseny uonenjen




01 | oBed

suuy Bujssol) doyg »
"SweisAg @JeN-4o3Ug Py o
'swie)shs souefilerIng
elowey)- @xel jebuy «
4 ) 9SG0 IR TR
‘feyiod yueled pajelpap Y
ddy uoneaunou sjgow dojgales «
SdO BINOUAS »
oY »

:sepnjoul wawdinb3
"pelepisuas ale sesng suedold
11662'9/8'c$ 01 ¥8Z2'969'C$

10 Juswifed [enuue pajewss o

"GLOZ 8q pjnom sasnq [y »
“painbas

a4 pjnom Aepno [elides oN e
Juswefuele BuiseaT fediounjy
1dwexs-xe] ‘sies paxi [eak-Q|.
e Bugeyioe Aq sejoiyen aieds
pue pajnos pajeni-auedold pue
|esaip mau puelq /¢ aunboe

‘a)is uo
Pasoy JaM, 84 pjnom sasng ey pue
)09 [epualod sessnos|( :Buedoid
*sasng Jjing sewoy ).
fq peprosd oq [jm sesnq [y e
Sc9 eney Iy o
*AIRLULING SARNOBXT 8y}
wioJ) ¢ o} |, SoLeuasg ul pagossp

'/ 00¢ 91e sasnq Isep|() o
SdD eney iy o
“auedouid
10 uondo ey) eney sesng MaU |, o
"polamod [osalp 82 sasng |y o
*UoKeoIpul

01 (4897 oy Joy abuelme [ « SE Sajajyan JO aoueUR)UIBL /e pue ‘Iesh ‘uoleoipul oM
:papoul pue aseyond sy) Jo jeadey] o ‘fyjoedes ‘adA) sopnjoul 181 SjoIUSA o Y
voneuoul jo siuod A8y © :papnjous :papnjoul
“d-M ey} 0) souzldwos uomewolul jo syiod fay] uonewsou 1o siuod fay] o
Ut e 0y sieedde ssuodssy = 'd-1y auy 0} @ouerduiod ddy (s)eans 1 Jowdinb3
B9 d /
—— u1 9q 0 sieodde ssuodsay 3 0) soueljdwiod vl aq o) sieaddy o o _— s e
aup jo uoissaidul |[eISAQ ‘asuodsai auf) Jo uoissasdu [[RIBAQ :asuodsa sy Jo uoissadul [[RI9AD S9Jo1yaA JO 1817 p S9N "3
|
Iomsuy w3
wuey | eopsuny.jo uonepodsues) wepms | uey Wepms 1511 nuey SSOJUBS J00UIS Weng 01 suopsand UoRENjRAT




L1 | abed

“Bunyoe)

S1 payoB,) 8q PINOM S| Moy

uo sjielep oljpads ‘suoneoadye

Buipesoxe pue suopeel

Jswioisno poob Bulysijgelse

juepodw| au) jo Buipuejsiepun
ey s109pie) ssuodsas ey S|IYAL @

:asuodsas
a1 Jo uoissesdul ([eIAQ

- ueqd, Bumoyjos sy sjussaid

S ‘Uoijoas ssausAisuodsay
93LBULIOLS 8y} U] :Sapnjaul
sjojeaipul asueuncyad Kay] °|,

@i

PLAOLIST aansediL
0 B} pUTOL

‘pepesu
se papesy] SO0 0 ayloeds

uojeuLIolul U uonejussald
Qlejd Jsjioq, © se speal siy) ‘uoljoes

Alewung eAnoexd ey ul pajels sy o
:asuodsal sUji Jo uoissaldw) fleIeng

uetduoa Aguain’) |

‘goueldwon Nd
*S9[0IUSA SIAISS-}0-INO JO ISGUINY e
‘seinjie) 89IAISS-U) o
"souewtioyed auwip-up e
‘sjens) Bume)s leAuq e
*SUOIBNIEAS 18ALI(] ©
*$99USLIND90 }OBYD Pliyo pue
‘s)uepIage ‘saunful - sonsnels A19eS o
sapnjoul
si01e21pUl 3aueuLiopad Aoy °|
*painbal
seale [|e SSo10e anjsuayaldwod

sem papinosd uoneuiop| “d4
aup 0) eaueyiduios u oq a) sigeddy o

:asuodsal aup jo uoissaidw] [[RIOAD

lspouln |
1eAuq (¥)

sjey/iolsiH
Janouin |
Jenud (g)

sanbiuys)
usuninIoel
Jeni (z)

panssy
jpue painsesyy
st Auioeriey
SOUBLLIOMD
MOH

aquased (1)

& Bumoyjoy
auy) sseippe
lesodosd

8y} S20p MOH

Kuqeyox!
23UBLLIOLBd] "€y

‘uoljpw 1.4 o) dn sseooe
ues LS (51/90/10 pelep) ope o

"oBnuos

aup jo preme uodn 000°000'02$

10 JUNCUJE WNLWIXEW JU} Ul pasd

10 Jops| Agpuess e snssi o} pasedaid
111 1ey) Bune)s asey)/uebiop

“abuelo

0} 08lgns s| pepiacid uofewsopu sy}
pue Aseynoo e se papiaoid s) iepe o

" Jueg ey} o suoyeblqo

s) pefyiny Ajuojoejsies skemje sey

JIewio)sng ey, Jey fune]s eauswy

"d'r woy (71/0g/Z 1 Petep) Jene o &pain Jo
: R - J0ueg woy (y1/91/Z) PeIEP) 186 © | apsn e apmold
4 S JODUDS 10} DONSS! el . ok 0} sssubul
O JULS ) ' A AT A —Jusjul Jo Jepe
HUIpUEISH 3 {0 Shgm ong - "6002/4/G PoYep 052'161% a1 10 SIY9| ON ;
' Jsey 1o} puooes o) pue €1/6z/g Perep . ’ ¢HPeIg
SR UPAI0 (0 SON9) BAL 915'0vE4% 10} 1511 SY) A papIanS "Z). 'oN 0} G0 Ay wouy BuiBues 10 S1eleTy
“uol om) Ajuo — AIojsiy JIPSI0 J SIele] © sejep — Alojsiy Jpaio Jo sisjeT © jo hosiy
Gze$ 0 dn gjgefiens Jpaig o JUNOWE [2NULE Sl *GL/Z1/10 — oueImsu| siajanel ] Jee ) any
‘papnjout 10 jusased o} 0} Bjgejiere Buipuog o -000'000°GZ}$ so Anaedes Buipuog o ¢Aoedeo
uoneuwuoul jo siuod A3y} » papn[oul ‘papnjaul Buipuog
EENE-T uopewogul Jo swiod K3y » uoneusioy o syied £2y] o 10 JUBLIBIEIS
0) eoveljdwoo uf 2q 0} sleaddy d4y d4 pepnjou
——— ayy 1 eoueljdwios ug 8q o} siesddy o 2y} 01 oueldwos ul aq o] seaddy o Bumegas ol fingers
) Jo uoissaidui jeseng ;asuodsal aujy Jo uoissasdu [|e1oAp :asuodsal sy jo uoissasdun jjeloag | 10 80USPIAG Sej Jeioueur *4
amsuy wewej3
juey | eoudury jo uopeuodsuel) WRpMS | yueY RS 1584 ey S32JAISS j00YIS WeLng 0} suopisend uonenjeA3




Zl | ebeg

"ealy uojsajiey) Jejesls)
ayy Ul 99ualiadxa [004oS SjeAll ] o
*sdu pjeu jooyas Aejuewels e

Hoanedwoo Alsnp
3] @.,{:;:._2_::_;5,., sunsay

‘syiodel suenessp pue ‘sbugesu
1sWoysng "spiea podsy AjupLiow
‘syipnie Ajeles Ajypuow ‘eauettsoped
SUIfj-Uo pIooal 0} JU0Z

Juoneuuonn

o/ 0" o)
ERIEEL | %ww ..me M__”ww ‘safiAnoe Ajejes plogal o) a1em)os
|emxauo?) pue ajydeiboas ;. %07 T 02 fuieysg] Jo asn o sepnjou]
UORIRE ARPGRIS [IOUBL- ._ms._. mm___._ ) :uejd asueyduios 19enUE) G sesng
UL, 2 ‘aAes| yoIs pue ‘sAepjjoy ‘uogesen POUMQ) JOUISICT
‘AyNgepeAs a2n0sal jeloueuly °g “fABIAB JO} pue ‘eoueinsut aji ‘4y3 pred Iopue 30008
g o e peussaid Alojsiy uojeuiLLLs) any ‘sejd Juswieia! SE Yans SaARUSIU d)epouiLioase
s § P13 ue A i Jgah oa1y) @Bl JON0-UINY JAALIQ °¢ I9Ujo pue souensul _mwo_umc._ Spiema} 1w
o] ‘MeIsBLoL e . . suolnguyuos ‘sebiem aajiladLLI0s Mol — uielfoid
. 2 subjs preA pue spieoqjig e . .
:uepd soueldwios 1oenU0g G S s K sepnjoul uejd :uejd uonuaBY ' mucmcoﬁﬁ_m_\w_
rauwie4 JO |lej Aleles e pue ‘syusuussiiaape ‘Bugnoos » 0l
“ieem uopenaidde sefojdws o ‘ejpaul |e90] JORIU0D UoREoo| ) S|} SROP MO snjels jusung
‘seAjugL sepnjou) seibejess uoioenly o %L 110¢ pue AtojsiH
gaueldwoo din-jsod pue di-erd e ‘Bujuies; sl o %¢"0¢ 2102 suoliefey
"SBAUBOU| GOUBPUSHY © *SO[APOY9S JIOM SW-liEd o %Sl €102 loge (6)
‘se0Ussqe pajesuadulod ‘sesnuoq [eLieyel safojduls o %172 44 souspedxg
PRIB-UOGEDA PORORY {r102) 39121 JOAC-UINY JOAU( 'S (uonusisy
*sbelenod “1ofojdwiz Ajpusii{-oby pauie) JWOoSND)
UCISIA pUE ‘[eyuep ‘UlesH o & S S SWEl Wo'sqorjusiiaey "sabefjoo pue sjooyos 192500
‘safem u| ssealou] o "SI9Uiow awoy-je-Ae)s pue saaies ‘sije} qof ‘sayaInyp Je sjuens BullH o uie] -6uoT (g)
:uejd uonusiay ¥ se yons sdnoJb syoads Bugehie) yoeano Ay o
sapnjou Jey) abesseui Bulinoey o ‘solouabe eoueliedxg
Jan0-uin} Jusated o7 Jo soiopjiom pue Jusuifojdwg o |  [EMIXEIUOT puE
obelony :91B1 J19AC-LIM JOALIQ 'S 'SE Ljons  SeAjeniul usLIBSHISApE oydesboss) (1)
gjueaydde mwh___ﬁ__m__ﬂ M\w_“_m%h.w_ﬂ“mwwww _m M 2 pue justupinioa) JL8IP j00Y9S faeyeny
pejsalaul o) asuodsal " e -2t sepnjou se|fejels uogoely o 20IN0S3Y
dluoyoae 0 lew josiq : ;. Aaug ,K.,, - "Asionlp utejutely o [erueuld (g)
"JUSWILIDIIALS 0 Fioota, “sjues)|dde oe
sLiom eAmsod B ugLIeyy o . pue ‘useios ‘ssesoid o} Aressaseu Ueld
o *SUONN|oS JoJie) Pue SlenjeAs e $60IN0S91 PUE SWaISAS Buiuieueyy o mumcm_w_mﬂoov
— EaE:EoE. i N ‘syuswalnbal *SJN0J JO IaguInu ay} jo Jusaad g} | EWEME%
Rt - s n_o_m‘wmn OUf} JO UONNIEXS AJlIan pue yoei] e 1O SS90 Ul 8010} JOAP WIBIUIB © 8_Em<
sug|d uonae Buryoddng o enenhel s e :Sapnjou :oamto%.cem
i} o} popsal (9Bpepouy pue sjocy) e e
suiodeu Aeytenb $001n0s81 o) Aojdap pue sjquIssy o sanbjuoe) JuaUNINIIB) JBAUQ "7 wepms (s)
‘“Ajpuous ‘Apieem Jo uopnaulsic « *Ajreinooe uejd (uonuajoy
‘sapnjoul [pooisiapun pue pejedluntuiod Jonu()
s101eaIpUY) 9suewojiad L8y "L s1lusuieJnbal yoes Jeyl ainsul e uonelnin
omsuy wawaf3
nuey BIIBWNY JO UoneuodsueRS | wRpMS | juey WRIpms 1si4 Huey 0] suonseny uonenjensy




¢l | obeq

1dwiord sedinbai siy ), Jueujssaul
juswidinbe sy yoejo1d

‘sal jje 16 ‘Aem B yons u)
‘pejesedo Buteq s uewdmnbe
oy} Yol Ul ee)s Jefnorued

ay) 10 SMe] uopoadsul snq
jo0ds o Splyen [Blo1eULLIOd
U ypm Auniojucd Jos uf
‘("a)e ‘IsLpBaM PjoD

awalyxe ‘suonpuod Buperedo
Aisnp ‘ebesjiw moj Afjensnun
@|durexa Joy) suoyipuod
Bunesado jensnun Aq pajejolp
ag Aew se sferusiul pesiAel
1Jans Jo ‘S[eelul saUBeusjueLL
peisefibns s Jainjoeinuews

2y} 0] uLojuod ‘jelsueb uf o
:pnjau; SpIepUEIS asueusIule|]
*sesnq Gz Jod J 4 8uUQ e

Jlounon soLeUSiUE|\| PeIEoIpRq ©

L ]

2

:SaSN PAUMQ) 131SIQ Jojpue
40QJS SIepowoIIe Y i
mo} - weibosd asueusiuiey oL

.:__f.;L;. 0 44 :. i;_\..

*eyus eakodwe
Ue paous|iadxa Jansu aAeH
*98NZjo JLYS-OU & SJePUBW [jij} ©
“diysuogejes
ol juaLno Aue azjubooss
1 pue safojdwis-0id 1 YIS @

SRS JUaLING
pue [0Sl suonesy Joqe ] G
ueosed 96 4o ajel
uonuelel Jawojsng :asuapadys
{uonuaiay JWI0ISNY)
1oRNUes B -Huo g

14 ojiauosyoer «

:sepnjou; ued soueUBIURW U} JO
SWBHBIH :Sasng paumQ 19ISIa

Jo/pue J0gIS 21LPoWLIDIe 3|
{11 Ao} — wieabiold saueusiuely gL

‘Juspisaid 60S (2907

Lo} epnjoul Jele] uonepuswilinosy] o
‘sieaf g ysed e

1 &y Aep-suo sjuis e papodsy
"sjueljo

UOIUN-UIOU PUE uoun Loq aAeH e

-Shjels usung
pue fi0isiH SUoRe}sY JoqeT G
%96 10 8jel
uopusieY :eousuadxy (UonRuRRY
EESm:ov quEoo ] -6uo-g
1 : 4] Of
:2ousliadyg
_aEﬁEoo pue o_:n_zmoew 1
1 S asundsas 2o 40 O
B__Em__ga 291n0S81 _u_u._s__“_ i)
uasedde
: 109 1IRAUOT
.:m_n_ mucm__._Eco 19R0UC) G

‘suoysafibns o) uipuodsay o
‘uopesuaduiod
tonup annoexe BupeyQ o
‘spieme pue Buiuied) o
‘Jouuew! ey
& u) sjuswubisse synol Bupnausi e
*S3|nu pue
saoyjod egejdsjiom Jesp Hulpmold o
‘Aoyjod soop usdQ e
"SJusA
[B90] ‘s19A]) ‘0OPIA ‘SISjje|smMal
*9'] SUOHEOIUNLILIOD SAIDRYT ©
:Buipnpou
vousiiadie Bulpsemas e Buiesia
saquosep uejd, :uejd uonuaisy y

‘suagaadsu sejnbeos pue
‘suope/Iosqo pue saniqisuodsa!
duj-asd Jenup ‘swelsAs

Bupodey sjoiyep o1uos0af

ay} Jo ash au Aq papoddns

sl pue sjuswaunbal | OQ siesw
wesBoid pid -paurejdxa ssesosd
N :sesnq paumg 1014s1q
Jojpue JOQIS S1EpPOWLOIR I
11w Mol - wiesbolg sauruSRH 0L

mc_?_o:_ v%soa __ﬂau

[e21 OU ‘1enamoy ‘paulap aIe sjeoh

pue suofjejes JogeT :SMEeLS 1IN
pue A101SIH suonejay JoqeT s

*J8JUa0 [|ed 8y} pue ‘uonnjosel

iejdwiod ‘senusae Yyoegqpas)

Jaugojsng * SNy USp|oD) anl ay),

Buipnjou paujejdxe weaboid sotes

Jaiwojsny :@ousuadxl (Uonuaisy
Jowoisng) 1oenucs wie | -fuo g

"AS00 Yim souslisdxe

@els pue [2aoT :aausuadyg
fenixaiuos) pue siydesSoan) 7

*SLLISIU0D

20J/URS/[ENJOBI{UOD PUE S8JJCA

Buibeuew o} Ayfigisuodsal oy}

U J0SIp S} 0] 22Inasal [elduieu

auy) se paufisse si 1abeuey jelouan)
ujigejiene a2mosal [elouew) ‘o

e

gsa1)) g Aguasng

juey

ea1iBUNY JO UoREUOdSURL] USPMS

ey

JUSpMS 1544

Huey

SSIIBS [0OYDS Weying

MUy
01 suonsanp

WouKy3
uogeneA3




71 | obed

- . |dM Moy fo uoljeuejdxe Jesp
o bt : O]\ :23URINSSY PueR JSWaINSe) “19juss [jes painssy
SSauaAISU0dsay SIUBULIOUD °L. ay to uonesedo pue uoneluaweldsl | pue painsesy si
‘ueyd uoejuswajdi auyJ 0} paslalal Ajurews ssousAisuodsay
peulap-jjem e Buey jo 2 pue ol Jseyesm au) Sem weisAs S0UBUNONSY
souepioduy ayj Jo Bulpuejsiapun i Bupoyuow enssyBupoes jueldios MO
SY1S Si uoposs siy) w yybusis ot 1) o pasodoid sy ‘Jonsmol| ‘palinbal aquaseq ()}
Ao * -1 8y} o} aoueduioo {jdunz pue esuodsel seale [|2 $S0192 ansuayeiduiod sem
Ul fjeiono aq o} sieeddy o 01268 S papInCid UORBULIOIL] *dp 94} O) ¢Bumolioy .
eouelduied ul [|eseno eq o) sieaddy o Sy)ssalppe | SSBLBAISLIoASY
asuodsal fesodoud IUBULIOI]
ay Jo uoissaidun jeieng :asuodsal au) jo ucissasdwl jlesong :asuodsal au jo uoissaidw jeiea0 o) S0P MO} H
papasu SE 1o "Jeef
lad s2uQ [e9lA1ag WeISAS Oy e
pue (uolepuswwLiogsl
s Jenjoenuew
LIOISSILUSUE.) U0 paseq) simoy
('] :@9KUSS UOISSILISUBLL 10 | o
:{uonepuswiicoe)
s Jeinjaejnueut
suibue uo paseq) sinoy
6°0 :8buey Jeyjid pue Ip 0 - o
(ssSopW
000'¢) sinoy gz'| :uopoedsuj
oyelg pue uonoadsu) AlReg 10y o R T
:spuepuers wesbod pyd uewidinb3 asoube|q spiyoA ©
“J0; pauueid ‘weiboid fales [BjuslLOIAUL] o
ale sansg| Juewudinbs [onuo ‘wieiboid Buues | uepiyos] o
Jey) ainstie 0] WS)SAS SpI0sB) “Joyyuog Aioueau) pue Alddng sped o
9joiyeA anstieyedwoo e Buisn = "Sle/)og SOUBUSJUIBJ SLBle] ©
‘SpIEpUE)S “suoljoadsu] sng dli|-}s0g pue -0id o
fqienb sjqeuoseas yym "S30INI0G
1USISISUI0I SfelIsjeul Joyjo pue Jleday] JuSpIYOY pue elsuen) o
sued jsoo-1semoy oy Buidasy] e ‘Wesbold soueusiuley
Jutof Apog/imon sy Je abeurep OAuSARI He-OYlHO-eIS i o
anjsuadxe plone 0} peyoeye ‘JuswsAolduIl
-jom satpoq pue sjmod fuidesy| e SNONURUOJ pue soueousd
‘ainyipuedxe ises| sy aunbes m Jog Awjigeunodoe ‘Jusuissesse-leg o
Aoy aseym yuiod o) 1e suop ale ‘pautejdie
sijede! Jeyy ainsus o} esuodsal [1oM J0N " [e0) JusieBzuByy [BNsIA o
Jamsuy Waws|3
juey | edusuy jo uoneuodsuel) wepms JuIpms 1S4y Yuey SEIIISS [00YDS WeLng 0} suopsanp uonenjens




Gl | ebed

(2) ' Swewasmbai 19eRUCD pasodoig
‘speau doys [je sjenfeas e paaaxs 1eyy asoup Anuapy (e) aquasaq (1)
pue //pz 10msip ay) o} sjgefiese "senss| Ajgioe; :saifojouyaag pasodosd (p) eoejd ul aq fma
Buieq Huipnjou Jebeuew oL Aue ssnasip o} 8210 Jes) pue wes} uolisues
10 9|0l U} Sequasaq :1ebeuely () ‘faunoq) pue ‘ediounyy bugoeiog o “18)u80 ||ed sy o souenuuoy aieq (u)
. d o sepnjoul jesodoxd aseg “sejnioel
i s USWILOIAUS @ m:._o,ﬁwm._ SUI-Iny & S aiIas 0} Jequisiu siientols
[ .
cozmucmEm_n_E_ se EwEuw—.__._um 1seq ey ) th buiojdwi, liels pajealpep e 0 LoRIPpe 8y} wmm:w>_wcn_amm._
poeu i ue|d sy} Jeup ‘Buipnjou) esuodsai ejeyd sepnjou; jesodoud aseg :syuatupadui pue Ayenb
sezjubooa! /1S "EE) pajefel Jejiog :'319 ‘Apadoad ‘ays "Ayjioe 4 {p) ssauansuodsal Aug oy | S0IAISS JuaLIng
yoea _M_ w_mm_.w_,%mw_o» _WW_HMMM JoBevepy uonnjosai pesodoid pue bupsry (o) | @ auogriosey
nuep) I asodol
osje uejd ey ] “ouads fyopeg uobey sy woy ouejsisse “obusjjeyp Buinuyuod & se paynuap! i d ()
Js2) puE elep S| ey} papiaoid uym Josisedng Bujupe | aup $1 JUOUINIOA! JAALI(] Joo]) POUMO SJEIS weiboid
sem ugjd uopejuswsydu| fq pespusdng :wesboid fzjes (2) ] 0 SaInjie} S0jAIaS-H 0 AUINOA juswidojenap
pajielep v :uejd vopisues | -sse001d uolisues by sy o} enp seleds se sasng _Mzo_mmo_o.a
pesodeud sy 2quISaG-0sI9 i QU Ul SI2ALP pUE Yejs uoe)odsues) 01 feuomippe ue w“_u_z.._n sapnjou ' Bupures . (1n)
3L} 0} JOIORIUOY M © J) T jusung 10 Bupy au s1BpISU0d mwhmwwuﬁc_n_w—w_”_“_mhmw m_m.“__.-wqb_“_omﬁ sio)nqIueD ey
“20jues Jo uopdesiad jjeteng o uejd uopisue) ay ), :uolisues ek feiommmaich 10 sounsay (I
pue ‘soueutioysd suil-uQ o yess Jojpue Bupinioaa seanq (a) -
‘Rypaeiel spiyep "UopeaRia SO Uy J0f BMERTE WEISAS BB | oo e zneBicy(l)
S861q 0095 U J0 SoUEIEaddy o uopezuebio Ue jo sejduexe auoy & pue 'sebeueu jeuopppe | T O
"usweBeuew juspng PUE S3/01 JEIS pue jusiuaBeueus ‘seue0 [[ed 8 Jo uopippe oy} ‘Bujuien yeis®
" ‘soueszedde senuq L gt st e soles Jaurojsno Buipnjour 1oeRU0 Jo | UOREZIUEGIO ()
) N | sl Jeyo uoneziuehs
‘SIOALIP AU} Jo SpIY Lk steak 6o 158) 3u) Jano pajuaLud|diLy sseooid Bupied
‘epnjou -4S09 10} USSq OABY JeL) SOAEIUI LY SBQUOSD |y o)
. : uonoes :ssauanisuodsal pue Ayenb
Seak juBlLESSEESE O SBaly Peiaueey Agezaioacs aeq avey s FIIISS JUBLIND JO JUBUWISSISSY (B) ‘030 ‘fyadosd
‘senss| pue Aienb ou jnq Jeis £ S 4o sepdisuodsal NS i ¥ ‘ayis “Aypoed (p)
30JAI8S U0 JIBgpPas) UrRIqo pue sajoi 8y saquasa( sebeueyy (2) $10}9RIUCD) JUBUINOU] =R
0) slojesis|ujwipe _om__._ow pue ‘gyse) uoljejusLusydw oloads wesBoid
SIELO HMEm_v M_Mw_som Q.MMEQ ojep sepnjou Jey papiroid s ajge). o 3 fyejes (o)
[ ]
.Emsm mmw,”.mn,_ ’ mo i ow< Bl U} 0} PBZILIOISND S| [ENUB o 'sonss| jeuolesedo uonisuel jjeis
0] ww_\m,m_%ﬁm skonins hwEwums_% , “enuew 1094100 pue soueuLopad ainsse lojpue Buginioa
" gouewsoped JO JUSWIOMSEAL! dnrle)s e Aq pspinG s1 858001 © puE Yae1) 0 Pasn §| [eUoZ/Sdo Jonuig (q)
aup Joy ABojopouiew auld sy “ueld TaN0IN 18D pUe loBeuely (2}
o0 01 J20dde shonins BE.Emzo = uoigsues ) pasodosd auy aquasag 'sidy A19jeg ‘swnjon Jeyuso [[eo
’ =(IS7 8Y 01 J0IDRNUOD MBY € J]°Z ‘soueydwod g ‘semjie} solMeS UBJd UopisuBl|
190URINSSY PUR JUSLIBINSEa *gga001d Buyoden -uj ‘sjebie; uswhojdws ‘spodas pesodoid au)
SS8URAISUOTSSY 30UBLLICLIS] "] a1 10 awisnoidw) [enupuod SUII-UO ‘SapNjoL PIEOGUSED || aquose(-0s00
Aapens neseq jo Jaypie 10} uonesedo Ajiep ayp *2JURINSSY PUR USILIAINSEAY au) 0) 10192.3U07)
I { 21 e sie ul pejelodiodu) 8 [ Jusuieinsesul ssausnisuodsay souewiIoyayd | moN e Jf {z)
Rmsuy Wwewaj3
Auey | eduswy jo ..f_ﬁzonm:m...— uepms | yuey WBpms 1si SSJIAIBS [00LPDS Lueyng 0 suonsenp uonenjeis




91 | ebed

LSIng [IM LS "Swioo JonUp pue
‘ooeds aayjo ‘sheq soueusjurRLl
‘sesle Gupjred paousy pue payyby
apnjoul [jim LoRed0] Yaes "sepljioe)
soueusiUEW ajqeldedoe oM} 9)e0)
0) Yoleesas Dejanpuoo sey 1S
o1 ‘Ausdord ‘aus ‘Aujioe (p)

‘Justugbeuew JoineyS( JUSpRIS

'sesnpasold Jusplooe sng

‘f19Jes goejdyiom [eisuesy

‘suopejnbal pue

sajni peiejed A1eles Buwmojio-

'sBugest

Ayajes Appuows Liojepuepy

S| Jleyojesym

pUe fs)urensal Jo sh su

Buipnpour Buues) spasu [eoads »
“Buiuien

99)ues-U] 10 Jeak jad sinoy us) e

[ ]

L]

:jases soejd

-iom pue uojjeyiodsues) ajowiosd
0} seale BUIMOJ|0) SLf U SaSNO0}
V1S ‘Bujuien seaup pajepueiu

0} uonippe u| :weibosd faies (3)

"uojjesepisuod Auoud uanb
24 M spiepuels Justiojdwe
1981 oYM Sten(] ‘seakojdwe

‘popasu se pejsnipe

pue pessasse-a1 aq o} shutied
pejosye annbal jj Jey) Jnooo Les
sefiueys 9)nos pue uni ‘12ak jooyss
© JnoYBNOIL Swi 0} S} Wold *J)

SuoRIpuod

fenjae ul papaa Apedold useq
QABY S80I ||E JeLf) 2INsUB 0) papasu
se pejeadal st sseooid uns Aip syL ‘9

“AjBuipsooot pajsnipe

ale Buured pue seynol HoBqpSa) JOALIP
uo peseq ‘sanss) feansifo] pue Bujwug
[enusiod [euoippe Ajjuept o) ues-ip
ale saynol fenpiaipu ay) ‘padojeasp

s uejd syno. Bupjiom poob e esuQ) G

‘sBuied (soueysip

‘Buiu) snewejgold 3091100 pue
figuspi pue suejd sjnol (peziuido—
sy menal i spredxe Bupnol ing “y

‘Bujuuibag

oy 1snf s1 sy *esuspisdxs no

wol ‘suejd aynoi Apeal-peol 1anep
fiim ssjnpows uopeziumdo Jiayj ey
1s9B6ns | slopusa wajsAs Bulnol
jfym 124} Sjou 0) Juepodwl s1 | g

"SI0 OJU SjuswBas uns pjing welsAs

"uopnjosa! o} sjeudoidde se Jiejs

0} Buireys Jo} uoneuLioju; sy) sjood
Jeyy ABojouyaa pue eyejul auoyd Jo
UONRUIGUIOD B SE Paquosap S| WejsAs
qwashs Hunonuoyy anssybupjoes)
Jurejdwoy pasodoid aquasaq ()

'sishjeue
Ayiqisee) ojiouods suedosd y o
pue ‘ainjonysesul Bulen) ey}
10 Uofejfelsul yiuous gz 2 Bununssy e
‘oseud
188 8U} Bupnp seleds se sesng
|eseip paoejdal o) BuluEuEy ©
‘esezy
1e 399} au} Jo uoinad e Supeidsy o
:sepnjoul
UONEUAIOU] PUE SUONePUSLLLWO093)
[BUOIPPY ‘Joouds jo Liels 8y) Uuo

sjeny suedoid
1o uondope
sy} 1o} uejd

e ‘Ajjeattoads
‘aquosaq (9)

soedwip
sjeusq
pejedianue
aquosaq (q)

sjuswialinbet
19B1)U0D

pasoxa Jeyt
asou} Ajpuapj (e)

se|fojouyos |
pesodold ()
SjusLuipadiuy
ssousAisuodsa.
fAue o) uognjoses
pesodoid

pue Bunsi (2)

sjiefoys
ssauanisuodsal
0} Uopnjosal
pesodoud pue

uonesyguap| (g)

, 0} g|npou uopeziwndo Bupied uns ssaueAisuodses
pue sIoALIp JusLInd e m.:?c_EmE_ s WwaysAs BUINOJ o SSN [ SM NG 1oedw) jenusiod ay) pue sysu sjefniw pue
uosued .15 uogisuen ale SjueLBes LN [ENPINPUI SUQ * © peysaBbns s) yoeoudde ul paseyd | gonh 2oy e
1els Jofpue Bumnioss ang (q) u i’ v :sjeny suedoid jo uondope aip ! UaLNg 10
“papnjoul 910 ‘seoLiele|o) alnyedap/jEALE ‘seLup Joj ueyd e ‘Ajeamoads ‘aquasaq (9) cmEmM,mmm ewv
aJe suopdussep uonisod jaug o opl ‘saw [jaq :sisjeureled Buwry ‘Bulionuow pue ! v
*SOJUBYOIW G, PUB Jiels 108 AjeleInaoe o} a1ed e} am ‘WelsAs g u..m__ om_.& 10101107
Jeuoperado pue yuewsfeuew funnos e BunnByuoo pue Buipging u) *). \ yiod . . JuaguInou|
o {10128 S9pPNjoUI SJBUSY "SUDIPAdSUl
5}, "o"| seafiojduio Jo sequinu sy} . ‘ au (g)
pUE sy wonsod Sepnioul 12t :epnjoul sjusLusje oolLeA ajuonIse ‘swajshs Bupjoel)
sl : foy] "uonoag Aousivlyz 2oUBULIONSA Juspms ‘sesawen wie dojs ‘swajsis waysAg
papnul si Leyd uoneziuehip
31} Jepun LIoNoss [lews & se eiawieo Buipnjou) passnasip si Buroyuopy
"papasu papnjour sj ssaoold Buuted unyeynol £Bojouyosy Jo Aeuse epim \y :syoedwmpp | enssyBupjoel],
sk suoljejusald 10} S|qEjeAR oy :ssao0id Buined unyyainoy () Sysusy paredionue aGLIasag wieydwion
Iamsuy WawR[3
Huey eouRWY JO Uoneuodsue | Juepms | juey URpmS 1544 uey SSDWUBS [O0LOS Weying 01 suonsanp uonenjens




/1 | eBed

10 Ajpeediios Sy pue)siapun sy}
‘Afjeuonippy *wiaoucs suisd Jo si
108} ey Jo abe sup jely) saziubcoas
V1S :sj[ejuoys ssauanisuodsas
pue fgenb s3jaies NeLND

03 suonnjosai pasodoid (6}

'981N02 Joysalgel sinoy 9

10 Wnwjuw e s)9jdwod 6y palinbal
q [jim sieAup juaung Gujues
PEO0J-UO PLIE LWOOISSE|D JO SINOY GE
eje|dwion 0) pasinbal aq | SISALP
mau [y weibosd yuawdojensp
jeucissajoid 5 Buruesy (m)

“19..jU09 8y} Jo pleme
uodn papnoid oq 0) SEWNSSY
is101nqIRUod £2)) Jo Sawnssy ()

anoge
905 :MEYyD [euoneziuebig(l)

anoqe
093 :Hens 3 uoneziuebip (1)

*sseooid Buped unysinos auy)
aziwgdo o] JOINO0Y U3 Y JIoM
o} ssfiiqisuodsal s Jayojedsiq
1j} JO SUO 8 I0RILY] [IIM )] pue
‘s|npayps Bupnod (3S39 aul Jo
Apxejdiios sy seziubiods! YIS e

:ssaoosd Buiied unyenoy (8)

“goueInsul Ajgel| paunbay

Aue pue saueinsul Bulpjing s Aupioe)
1joes Jo} sjqisuiodss) eq I LS
‘Areuomppy Aoy sy} jo deaydn
pue Jiede! ‘QouBUSIUIEL |jE SE [[oM
se pue 29puas auoydsjs} ‘s)s00

‘esodoid su woyy 12sjo JoN
:washs Buvoyuopy snssyBunjoes)
wiejdwog pasodold squaseq (1)

“J0B1U0D

ay} Jo preme uodn paujuLiep oq

0) -esodoud ayj woyy Jesjo joN ooejd
ui aq jjun wiesy uonisuen sxed ()

“lesodoud ey woly

poueease Ajipes! Jop :Sjjefuoys
ssauanisuodsas pue Lyjenb asnies
WBLND 0] Suonnjosal pasodoid (6)

‘Buiuien fiejes
(o) enoge eog :weibeld juswdojpasp
[euoissajosd g Bunrea] (m

anoge 983
:siomaquyuos fay Jo sewnsay (i)

anoge 998 eYys jeucieziuebio )

Agmn _E.E 8U) J0} Bjajsuodsal jusweBeuew feuoibel pue ejelodioo weishs
aq [ o), 1uswdinba Jayo pue 5 Bupoyuoyy
‘ . U} s9qLosap Jeu pepnjoul s 11eyo
siequd ‘sauoydsie) ‘siemndwod UoeZIUEBI0 $BIS B LoRezIuebI ) anss|/Bupjoes |
‘sireya ‘ojsap buipnioul ‘sjejuepiou HEZERIO | e wiejdwion
pue Justdinbe a1o [l pasodold (g)
|
| Jomsuy wswaf3
juey | eouRwy Jo Lo_ssgua: uepms | ey JuapmS 1S414 uey S3DIAIBS |00YPDS Weying 0} suonsand uonenjeAy




g | ebed

[eny pue eauBuS)UEL JO SO0 JSMO)
‘Buiule; t1eAup 10 1800 Bujofuo

ay) 82npal 0] UORUAB! JSNIP
apnjoul $alfisjels uolnasyy
pue ubiss Aousiaiyl

2oy (k) ¢ ‘esueUIIRL ‘[BN]
= [0JIIDY) 1S07) PUE B2INCSaY
Bunesedg (g) ‘seibajens jonuoy
1509 pUE 3UN0SAY JoAUQ (2)

“fenuepy

2UNPas0sd4 pue Ajejes NSty Ul
paguosap se swiajl QL 10 JOHuoUL
A “pansiydy pue painsesyy St
Kaua1113 souewiopad Mol (L)

‘SUONoes
snopmeld 8y Uy pejussaid
uopeuLioul sezyelng

10 sjeatlar Uogass SIY) [BI8AQ e
‘suoljoas

snoinaid o jeadsi e Ajeleuss) e

:asuodsal
auj 10 uoissasdul [|essA0

‘suonoes
snowaid Jo jeadal e Ajpleuss) o

:asuodsai aup jo uoissasdwl Jessny

$OPIN0Id 1BU} JUSLIBLANO) JJO5) ‘DUIUIE)
Jayoes] Buipoddns ejeg) Jejuip auy
Jo Buosuods ayy sapnjou] 2SI
0) pasodoid seanussu] [epaueud (g)

*fjeles pue Bupjoes) soususjueul

10 Jeuo7 pue spoaye a1

S9IN0. Jey) ainsue 0) 912Mmijos m:_ezo._
suenesio  :uonnaaxy pue ubissq
Kousiouya oy () B ‘coueusuIRW
‘|onj = [011U02) 1SO7) PUB 32INOSBY]
Bunesado (5) *seiberens jonuo
1S07) pue 22IN0SY JaAL( (Z)

“slipne aynos pue ‘sbuneswl

1awoisnd ‘(Jeuoz Jnoupm sesna)

sboj snq jooyds ‘suoday [euoz ‘spieo
Hodes Ayjuour sepnoul sampasoid

Jo suie)sAg :pansiydy pue painseayy
1 foua)oulg sauewIoua MOH (1)

"suoloss snoinaxd aup ul
pejueseid uolewlojUl SeZIelIWNS
Jo sjeadai uoposs siy) ‘Jleren) e

:asuodsal ays jo uoissaiduwy fjeseng

fousionys
anoy (y)

souBUSUIRW
‘fony

~ [onuog 180D
pue s21nosey

Bugesedo (g)

selfiejeng
Josjuog 1809
pue 80inosey
NIl (Z)

pansiyoy

pue painsesyy
st Aousiolg
QOUBLLLIOMS
Mot (1)
“Bumofjos

ay) spimosd
winuuiLL

e sy — Aoueomg
aguewopad

Aouspoy3
aouewioped

*|esodold

oy} woyj Jeap Jop :welshs
Buponuoyy anssyBunjoes |
wiejdwiog pasodoid aquasaq ()

J0BQU0D
S} 10 PIEME vy Jo)je Alejelpawwl
BuuuiBaq ejgejiens g pjnom

11238 1S ‘ueyd uopejuswsjdu
o|duwies pepinosd au Jod aaed

U} 9e) Jjim wiesy uolsuen siegq (u)
*SO0IAIS

Slul}-uo pue ajes Uo sSnool

8} pue eale 9y} 1o} Buino. oy

ey

EILALIY JO uoneuodsues | JUSPMS

Huey

1u9pS 15K

S83IDS [00LPS Weying

IBmsuy
0] suopsanD

ewal3
uopenieAl




6l | ebed

Bulpuig

Jou ale pue
fjuo sesodind
uosyreduios pue
|euonewiolu; 1oL
ale SejBuInss

aynol, ey (a)
S9jAIeS
Juawnoop uoiuedwios ul pajussasd uonenjend Jo uoWRYS oeD
e * * Jo} Butoud Aep
Jed apinoid (q)
suopdeoxe
ou— pepiaosd
swuio} sz (e}
(@
JuswULYoR)Y 988) 1500
wio-| Buiond (1) jesodoig °f
"}S09 1SMOj
oUj} 12 pesea) o [ S9jaIYe) ©
"g)e)s
U} Loy souepuadapul spiAcld o
*saxe) Ausdoid ; LIGRBULOIH
pue ‘sped jon} jo sseyaind sy i i
ynosy) eutjoses YOS Jo 9jelS
Ly Jo} enueAsl Xe) Bupeleuss = (Sear
“191MsiQ 03 pesodold
SoAnURIYY [RIoURULY (G)
‘UoJSepiRY
Ul peyeaoj wea} uojeziugdg pue 1osig
Gupnoy pajeoipap & sey 1S ey} 0} pasadoid
Sl UopeIapisu0d £ay [eucnippe Uy Yo stp JnoyBhony _m_MHm____M“MMW
‘uopeziwido pue Bupnod sjuepms Apasu woddns 0} pejeubisep T
‘sasng meu [ 1o uoanposul pun} s,gs09 oy o1 funeuop uonnoexX3
a1 0} anp uopdwinsuod pue ‘sjuspnis Apaau 1o} sdiysie|oyds pue ubiseq
7 SBMSUY JUEITE ]
juey | eouswyjo uoneuodsuel} wapms uspmS 15414 ey S8OIMIBS |0OLPS WeLNg 0} suopssnp uonenen




0z | ebed

*U\.T,L;W e

*Se0IAISS
uojjerodsuel)
juspnjs

10} usuiesibe
ojdwes

au) Ul pejess
suoRipuoo

pue suuel

auy) Buiying ym
Buoje painbal
$89IAIS
uopjenodsues)
sy apnjoul
lieys Buiotd (p)

nuey

,
eauBlLy J0 Uopeuodsuel Juspms

uey

JuSpimS 1544

ey

SSIUUBS JOOURS WeKINg

Iamsuy
0} suoNsany

L
uonemeas




RFP P1519 Transportation

Durham School Services -2014-15

i Cost{ Routes | School Days Cost
State Bus 162.98 249 181 S 7,345,346
Contractor Bus 231.78 87 181 S 3,649,840
Midday 36.61 51 181 S 337,947
Afterschool 49.29 10 181 S 89,215
, Hours
Field Trips 27.00 2250 S 60,750
Summer School 49,29 60 45 S 133,083
TOTAL COST S 11,616,180
Durham School Services Current-2014-15 11,616,180
Durham School Services - Proposed 15-16 13,987,410
Increase friom Old Contract to New $2,371,230




Value of GPS Services

Number of
Cost per Bus Buses

GPS: Hardware: Year 1 S605 287 $173,635
Wireless Transmission
Fee $31 X 60 mos. 287 $533,820
Overhead/ IT/ Staff $80,000 5yrs $400,000
Lost Revenue year one $15,000

5Yr.Total $ 1,107,455.00

Value Added: Additional Staff

Compliance officer $ 67,000.00
Value Added: 5% Minority Business
10 Addn’' IBuses to cover "down" state buses $600,000
Value Added: Additional buses
10 Addn' IBuses to cover "down" state buses S 445,260.00

Total Value Added

2,064,975.00




Comt; ty 7 SCHOOL DISTRICT

75 Calhoun Street
Charleston, SC 29401

OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL
BOARD AGENDA ITEM

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: John F. Emerson, General Counsel

DATE: March 23, 2015

SUBJECT: Policy JIH - Student Searches, Interrogations and Arrests.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve first reading of revisions to Policy JIH -
Student Searches, Interrogations and Arrests.

The material is submitted for: Action [ ] Information
Open [ ] Executive

Respectfully submitted:

%/4// "

Michael Bobby, Michael L. Bobby
Acting Superintendent of Schools Chief of Hinance, Operations &
Capital rams

N/A

Jeffrey Borowy, Deputy for /_/th” F. Emérson, General Counsel
Capital Programs

NA [ ] 1tem voted on and

Todd Garrett, Chair recommended for Board

Audit & Finance Committee A&F Committee on

& Item voted on and
E. Tripp Wiles, Esq., Chair recommended by Board
Policy Committee Policy and Personnel Committee on 3/11/15




OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL
March 23, 2015

SUBJECT: Policy JIH - Student Searches, Interrogations and Arrests.

BACKGROUND: In the fall of 2014, the Office of General Counsel was
asked to review CCSD policy on the subject of student questioning,
interrogation and searches and to report to the Board whether any changes
were in order.

DISCUSSION: In the fall of 2014 this office was asked to undertake a
review of policy JIH (Student Searches, Interrogations and Arrests) and to
research whether it was consistent with the law, policy elsewhere, and best
practices. As a first step, we assembled a cross-disciplinary committee of
representatives from relevant departments of CCSD, including the senior
academic administration, the Office for Student Placement, the Office for
Campus Security and Emergency Management. In addition, the research
entailed a review of relevant federal and state law. It involved a review of
approximately 60 policies from school districts elsewhere in South Carolina.
We consulted with both staff and other school lawyers across the state.
Using a resource available through the Council Of School Attorneys, a
national network, we sought input from school lawyers across the country.
In addition, we reviewed various law reviews and other literature on the
subject. Finally, we met with the School Improvement Council (SIC) of the
Academic Magnet High School to gather input from that school community.

In all respects, we determined that our policy JIH is consistent with the
standards applied elsewhere.

One question had been raised as to whether parents had to be notified
before a student could be questioned. That is not a practice elsewhere and
we found consistent agreement that such a practice would severely hamper
the ability of school administration to investigate incidents on a timely basis
and to take the necessary steps to insure a safe environment conducive to
learning.

Another question was whether a student being question possessed the right
to have a witness present and to have a witness familiar to the student. The
Policy and Personnel Committee is recommending that policy be amended to
require school staff, while questioning a student, to make a good faith effort
to have a witness present and, ideally, one with whom the student is
familiar.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve first reading of revisions to Policy JIH -
Student Searches, Interrogations and Arrests.

FUNDING SOURCE/COST:



NA.

FUTURE FISCAL IMPACT:

NA.

DATA SOURCES:

Office of General Counsel
PREPARED BY:

John F. Emerson

REVIEWED BY LEGAL SERVICES:
Yes.

REVIEWED BY PROCUREMENT SERVICES:
No.



Policy

STUDENT SEARCHES, INTERROGATIONS AND ARRESTS
Code JIH Revised

Purpose: To establish the basic structure for the following:
e searches of students and/or their property;
e interviews of students; and
e other aspects of investigations

Preface: In order to ensure a safe school environment and one conducive to teaching and
learning, school district employees may have to conduct inquiries into matters of varying
significance.  Ultimately, district and school administrators are responsible for directing
investigations.

SEARCHES

This policy recognizes that both state law and the Fourth Amendment to the United States
Constitution protect citizens, including students, from unreasonable searches and seizures. The
board's express intention for this policy is to enhance security in the schools, prevent students
and other persons on school grounds from violating board policies, school rules and state and
federal laws, and to ensure that legitimate privacy interests and expectations are respected
consistent with the need of the district to maintain a safe environment conducive to education.

Individuals

In accordance with S.C. Code § 59-63-1150, all school administrators shall be trained in the
“reasonableness” standard for searches.

In compliance with S.C. Code § 59-63-1160, principals shall post a notice at each entrance to the
school and all other access points advising that any person entering the premises of any school
will be deemed to have consented to a reasonable search of his/her person and effects.

Only trained school officials may conduct such searches unless exigent circumstances exist that
require another staff member to take immediate action for safety reasons. For the purposes of
this policy, a school official is any school or district-based administrator or the designee of the
school principal or superintendent. A school official must determine that the search is justified at
its inception and that the scope and conduct of the search are reasonably related to the
circumstances justifying the search. All searches of students and their possessions must be based
on reasonable suspicion and take into consideration the age and gender of the student and the
nature of the circumstances giving rise to the suspicion.

No school employee shall conduct a strip search.

Searches may involve metal detectors, but no search involving dogs will be conducted upon the
person of any student.

School lockers and desks

All lockers, desks and CCSD owned electronic devices are the property of the school district, and
are subject to search.

Motor vehicles

Charleston County School District (see next page)



PAGE 2 - JIH - STUDENT INTERROGATIONS, SEARCHES
AND ARRESTS

The privilege of bringing a student-operated motor vehicle onto school premises is conditioned
on consent by the driver to allow a search of that motor vehicle when there is reasonable
suspicion for a search of that motor vehicle.

Any contraband items or evidence of a violation of law or of the Student Code of Conduct may
be retained by school officials and/or turned over to an appropriate law enforcement agency.

QUESTIONING STUDENTS

Questioning by School Personnel

District and school administrators and teachers may question students about any matter
pertaining to the operation of a school and/or enforcement of its rules. The staff member shall
conduct the questioning discreetly and under circumstances which shall avoid unnecessary
embarrassment to the person being questioned. The school official shall make a good faith effort
to have present another employee with whom the student is familiar as a witness to the
questioning. Any student who answers falsely or evasively or who refuses to answer a proper
question may be disciplined.

Questioning by law enforcement

When law enforcement officers find it necessary to question students during the school day
regarding matters not connected to school, the school principal or his/her designee will cooperate
with law enforcement and shall request to be present, so long as his/her presence does not impede
the investigation. Normal visitor protocol must be followed by law enforcement officials at all
times. The principal or his/her designee shall make a reasonable attempt to contact the student’s
parent/legal guardian and request his/her presence. Should contact not be made, reasonable
efforts shall continue to notify the student’s parent/legal guardian that law enforcement
questioning took place on school grounds. The police shall conduct any questioning in a private
area.

CONTACTING LAW ENFORCEMENT

As required by South Carolina Code Section 59-24-60, school administrators shall contact law
enforcement authorities immediately upon notice that a person is engaging in, or has engaged in,
any activity on school property or at a school sanctioned or sponsored activity which may result,
or does in fact result, in injury or serious threat of injury to the person or to another person or
his/her property.

CUSTODY OR ARREST

Law enforcement authorities have the right to enter the school to take a student into custody or to
make a lawful arrest of a student, provided that they act pursuant to lawful procedure. If a student
is arrested or taken into custody at school, school officials shall immediately make a reasonable
effort to notify the parent/legal guardian.

Cf. KLG
Adopted 3/13/78; Revised 4/13/87, 11/28/94, 1/23/06

Legal references:

A. U. S. Supreme Court Cases:
1. New Jersey v. T.L.O.. 469 U.S. 325, 105 S. Ct. 733 (1985).

Charleston County School District




PAGE 3 - JIH - STUDENT INTERROGATIONS, SEARCHES
AND ARRESTS

B. United States Constitution, Fourth Amendment.

C. South Carolina Constitution:
1. Article I, Section 10.

D. S.C. Code Ann., 1976, as amended:
. Section 59-5-65 - State board to set regulations for minimum standards for student conduct,
attendance and scholastic achievement; enforcement.
Section 59-24-60 - Requires administrators to contact law enforcement.
Section 59-63-1110, et seq. - Search of persons and effects on school property.
Section 63-19-810 - Taking a child into custody.

halhadi N

E. S.C. Acts and Joint Resolutions:
1. 1994 Act #393, p. 4097 - Allows searches.

Charleston County School District



	.3-23-15 Meeting Board Agenda
	10.1B Student Transportation Request for Proposal
	10.2B Policy JIH

